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Chairman’s statement

It’s been a significant year for Ordnance Survey {OS) as in April
2015 we moved from being a Trading Fund and Government
Agency into a Government-owned Company (the Company)

The more conventional business structure of a Company
provides a strong platform for commercial growth, investments
and product development As a Company, 0S will be better
positioned to maintain its leadership role in our rapidiy
evolving industry, and encouraged to increase our pace of
development, introducing more location-based products,
services and solutions to benefit existing and new customers,
partners and markets

We have also established a strong team to lead the
organisation into this new phase I'm pleased that we have
achieved a blend of complementary experiences which will be a
powerful combination

Qur new Chief Executive Officer Nigel Clifford has been in

post for a year, bringing extensive experience of international
software, telecoms and services including complex joint venture
and public sector enterprises

We've also welcomed Clive Mosey (Finance}, Will Davies
(Human Resources), David Henderson [Products & Innovation)
and Nick Giles {Marketing & Communications) joining

Nigel Clifford, Neil Ackroyd (Chief Operations Officer and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer), Andrew Loveless {Commercial)
and Jon Q’Meara (Company Secretary) to complete the
leadership team
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This strong executive team s complemented by a suitably
experienced team of Non-Executive Directors — Mike Carr
{Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Stephen Lake (also Chairman of
the Audit Committee)} and Jacques Cadranel together with
Non-Executive Member Anne Jessopp Both Stephen and
Jacquesjoinedin the last year

With this team in place we’re building on the excellent work
imitiated in 2015 by Neil Ackroyd, refining and starting to
implement an expansive strategy featuring the focused delivery
of expertise and technology to support the geospatial needs
across Great Britain - and the globe — to enable further and
faster growth of our organisation

Over the past decade the significance placed on locatien

data by businesses and governments around the world

has grown significantly It’s estimated that the direct vaiue

of the geo-services industry in the UK s £2 2bn, with its

wider economic impact estimated at being around £26bn
Geo-servicesis a growing market, projected to advance at a
rate which out-performs a range of industries more commonly
associated with innovation — including software solutions,
mobiie communications and video gaming This represents
opportumty for OS and our partners which we believe will

help support our financial pasition in the face of inevitably
constrained public sector revenues, which have been subjected
to downward pressure by the Comprehensive Spending Review
completed in autumn 2015, which signalled lower spends with
0S over the term of this Parblament
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However, more widely, there’s no doubt that spatiat information
1s big business and our Geovation Hub 1s perfectly positioned
atthe centre of this It's a free-to-drop-1n location-data tab in
Clerkenwell, London, initiated by 05 and supported by valued
fellow sponsors, where innovators can be inspired by easy
access to brillant geospatial data and OS expertise Already,
new ideas have been born and found funding, new talent
developed and new collaborations formed

We put customers and partners at the heart of what we do In
December we launched the first of a suite of new Application
Programme Interfaces (APls), giving users easier access

to our data We also introduced a new Highways Netwaork
product as a result of feedback from our Public Sector
Mapping Agreement (PSMA) and One Scotland Mapping
Agreement {OSMA)

We continue to invest in and support our commercial partners
who provide OS5 with an essential route to market Ournew
Partner Programme went live this year, offering more targeted
activities across the industry sectors Our partnerships extend
worldwide, with OS International helping governments,
agencies and cities around the world be geospatially ready and
fit-for-the-future

Anotherimportant area of focus for OS are the fast-growing
fields of Smart Cities, Bullding Information Modelling and the
Internet of Things It's recognised that geospatial data has an
tmportant role to play in these developing areas and the need
for interoperability and common standardsis enitical to their
long-term success In addition to these emerging areas, 0OS
will also continue to support development of global standards
around the more traditional geospatial themes including

Web Map Services and 3D mapping, with a specific focus on
day-to-day usability
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While transitioning into an ever more sophssticated data
provider, we continue to be committed to our leisure market
and the health benefits of accessing the outdoors that we
enable 2015 saw the launch of our #GetOutside campaign —
which aims to motivate the general public of all ages and
abilities to spend more time outdoors TV's wildlife presenter
Steve Backshall, endurance athlete Sean Conway and the first
British woman to conquer Everest, Bamita Nornis, were recruited
as ‘Champions’ getting the message out to a wider audience

Qur digital OS Maps app covers the whole of Great Britain, and
new versions of our ever-popular leisure maps now come with a
mcbile download

More than ever, Ordnance Survey data, services and expertise
are being used extensively across the private and public
sectors to drive efficiencies, underpin decision making and
provide valuable insight and intelligence It's thanks to the
extraordinary commitment of past and present employees
moving the business forward that we're in the exciting position
we're intoday As always, my sincerest thanks go to them for all
their hard work, and at times sheer tenacity

I joined 0510 August 2008 and this time last year | anticipated
stepping down from my role as Chairman after seven
fascinating years However, | have in fact stayed to support the
first 12 months of our time as a GovCo And what a year it has
been - certainly one of the most exciting and promising in my
tenure Butretirement beckons andit’s time to hand over the
baton to my successor, Kieran Murphy, who brings to 05 much
relevant and valuable experience He will be joining and leading
a company and team well-equipped for the challenges ahead
It’s with sadness I'm leaving, but with excitement I’'m looking
forward to watching the future progress of such a wonderful
orgamsation

Marqetlc
Sir Rob Margetts d

Non-Executive Chairman
24 june 2016
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

I was enormousty excited to Join 0S 10
June 2015 and remain as excited a year
onwhen | consider what | have learned
of OS’s reputation, expertise and the role
of ‘location’ in aworld that is changing
50 rapidly

‘Everything happens somewhere’ and

so location 1s ready, willing and able

to be a powerful umfying force in the
world of massive data flows from billions
of connected objects, smarter living,
autonomous vehicles and, in these times
of austerity, where more always needs to
be achieved with less resource

50, we believe the global importance of
the geospatial industry will only increase
Location data is playing, and will continue
to play, a critical role in most aspects of
our daily lives and has become a vital tool
for decision making in governments and
organisations acress the globe

We are also conscious that, following the
conclusion of the 2015 comprehensive
spending review, we have to further
Increase our efficiency

In the hight of these forces, we have
developed and are beginming to
implement our plans Our strategy has
two strands and s simply descnibed -
supporting Great Britain to become
digitally ‘smart’ to the benefit of

1ts Government, entrepreneurs and
citizens and extending and shaning
this technology and learning to assist
cities, states and nations outside Great
Britamn to realise the same benefits

of an effective and efficient location
framework

One example of this approach to
delivering excellence, value and real
socialimpact s our workan ¢ries Cities
face many issues such as transport,
population growth and ageing, housing
and health Smart and more liveable
urban environments including the
challenges and opportunities afforded
by Building Information Modelling

and the Internet of Things will be one
area where OS will demonstrate real
value and build Great Bntain as a global
exemplar Ourworkn pilot ‘smart

city’ projects such as Manchester 1s an
example of how we will gather very useful
and repeatable learning

However, we will not be doing this

alone and alliances with the right local,
naticnal and global partners are a cntical
plank to our strategy as 1s a technology
renewal programme that will startin
earnest in 2016-17

During 2016-17 we will also be

participating In two reviews

= Firstly, as stated in the Chancellor’s
Autumn Statement, to consider
the aptions for private capital to
be introduced into OS before 2020
This review 1s underway, led by UK
Government Investments and BIS

= Secondly, announced in the Budget
2016, an exercise to develop options for
an authontative address register that
1s open and freely available

The outcome of the United Kingdom
referendum on the 23 June 2016

with a majority in favour of leaving

the European Union 1s not expected

to have a substantial direct impact

on the operations and strategy of
Ordnance Survey Our main market

1s Great Britain and the majority of
international cpportunities are expected
to lre outside the European Union
Similarly, most of Ordnance Survey’s
supply chain 1s based either inside Great
Britain or outside the European Union
The wider impact will be influenced by the
reaction of the general market, the United
Kingdom Government {as 0S's primary
customer and shareholder), and also the
Scotuish Government

While revenue growth, careful

cost management and investment
pricritisation are important challenges,
we must not take an ‘ivory tower’ view
from within OS We have to continue
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to ensure we understand the views

and needs of key internal and external
‘stakeholders’ — for example, from fellow
geospatial players, government, our
partner network, our customers and, very
importantly, the employees of 0S

With this in mind | have been keen to both
meet as many of these groups as possible
and also use qualitative and quantitative
surveys to get a wider view of where we
do well - and most importantly where we
need to improve

So, during the last year we have
established aseries of repeatable
satisfaction studies that allow the
leadership team to understand how well
we are doing in meeting the needs of our
stakeholders We now have feedback and
insights into the views of our employees
{using a new survey which allows us to
compare ourselves to a widerrange of
non-Government employers), partners,
users of our website and service centre
and key clients

We have used a number of these surveys
to feed into company communication
and incentive schemes to ensure that
we discuss and priontise improvement
actions in these areas every month and
throughout the year

Closest to home, | would like to thank the
people of OS for their warm welcome
Aswe implement our plans there will
inevitably be change forus all and |

hope that the changes open up many
opportunities for furtherimproving the
excellent spirt of OS as well as personal
opportunities to contribute to bulding
on the essential contribution that OS has
made dunng the last two centuries to
create the skills, culture and ambition to
flourish m the waves of change that we
are seeing now

I'm confident that a transformed OS will
be an even more amazing place to be
There’s a lot of work ahead and | look
forward to being part of the next step

SN

Nigel Clifford
Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016
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Strategic report

Commencement of trading

On the basis thisis the first year of
trade for Ordnance Survey Limited, the
financial nformation reflects that it was
a dormant company in the prior penod,
so all comparatives are nil However, as
Ordnance Survey Limited acquired the
continuation of the trade and functions
of the Ordnance Survey Trading Fund,
the annual accounts make reference to
this continuation of trade and function
For hustory on the trade and functions
of Ordnance Survey, please refer to

the 2014-15 Trading Fund accounts
‘Ordnance Survey Annual Report and
Accounts 2014-15’

On 1Apnl 2015, the entire functions,
business, subsidiaries, operations

and assets of the Ordnance Survey
Trading Fund were transferred to
Ordnance Survey Limited, a imited
company wholly owned by the
Secretary of State for Business,
Innovation & Skills, and the Company
commenced trading from this date The
payment for the transfer was E170mullion,
and was initially left outstanding wia an
interest-free loan from the Secretary of
State for Business, Innovation & Skills to
Ordnance Survey Limited

£34million of this loan was repaid via

the issue of £34million shares and

the remaining balance of the loan of
£136million was subsequently released
for two additional shares, which

created a share premium accountin
equity of £136milhon Subsequent to

this the Company undertook a capital
reduction which cancelled the share
premum reserve and transferred it to the
distributable retained earnings account of
the Company

The principal activity of Ordnance Survey
Limited i1s consistent with the Trading
Fund before it The collection,
maintenance and distnbution of
up-to-date geographicinformation

These accounts are for the year ending
31 March 2016

Business model

Ordnance Survey (0S)1s Britain's
mapping agency It collects, maintains
and distnibutes the most accurate and
up-to-date geographic information

for Great Bntain in accordance with its
public task, and this data s used and
relied upon by government, businesses
and individuals It provides servicesto
government and businesses to enhance
the value they derive from geographic
nformation

Through its subsidiary, Ordnance Survey
Internatronal LLP, OS5 also provides
geospatal services to other countnies,
helping them realise the benefits of good
location-based information

Ordnance Survey Leisure s the Group’s
vehicle for selling geospatial products
directly to consumers GeoPlace® s our
joint venture with the Local Government
Assocration that oversees the production
and maintenance of the national address
and street gazetteers

The CS Board remains accountable

to the Secretary of State for Business,
Innovation & Skills and the governance
arrangements for the Company are

set out in a Shareholder Framework
Document signed on 31 March 2015 by the
Directors of Ordnance Survey Limited and
for and on behalf of the Secretary of State
for Business, Innovation & Skills

The majonty of revenue 1s generated
through licensing the intellectual
property nghts, held under Crown
copyright, which 1s inherent in the
Ordnance Survey data Since April

2010, free and unrestricted access to
alarge range of mapping has been
provided to any prospective uservia

0S OpenData™, a service that underpins
arange of applications, while promoting
government transparency and
encouraging greater use of geographic
information
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Strategy and future outlook

An overriding objective of the transition
to a GovCo s to increase our pace of
development by introducing more
location-based products, services and
solutions to benefit existing and new
customers, partners and markets For OS
to have a long-term sustainable future, we
now benefit from a conventional business
structure, which provides the platform
for formulating commercial growth,
investment and product development

Dverthe past decade the importance

of location data for businesses and
governments around the globe has
grown significantly Today, 0S data,
services and expertise are being used
extensively across the private and public
sectors to drive efficiencies, support
decision making and provide valuable
insight and intelligence

We aim to be anintegral part of the

solution for customers facing complex,

expensive problems, by prowviding

definitive spatial information relating

to cntical national infrastructure, city

infrastructure and rural landscapes by

+ Continuing to enhance our geospatial
intellectual capital in terms of how to
collect, manage and maintain content

+ Making the best geospatial database
in the world even better - collecting,
deriving and creating more unique
content

» Improving access to, and usability of,
the contentin all its forms

Our strategic objectives can therefore be

summarised as follows

+ Ourshareholders — To deliver
greater value to UK plc through our
public task

« Qurcustomers - To provide solutions
to governments, businesses and
individuals for their big, high value
problems

« Ourpartners — To workn partnership
to solve complex business problems

« Quremployees - To create a
high-performing environment where
people are challenged with stimulating
work and talent can flounsh
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Business review

-

New map covers - and mobile downloads

We've replaced all 607 of our current
leisure paper map titles {OS Explorer,
0S Landranger and OS Tour series)
with a new design Each coverhasa
different photograph of Great Britain
taken by members of the publicina
competition run by 05, which recewved
more than 10,000 entnes

The paper maps now come with an
additional mobile download which users
can access for no extra cost

Routes can be plotted and stored
electronically and are available
regardless of whether a smart dewice has
asignal or not

Shareholding in Denmis Maps

0S and Dennis Maps have signed an
agreement so we now have a 25%
shareholding 1n one of the country’s
most significant large-format
ithographic printers

One of the man objectives of the new
partnership s for us to secure the supply
of 05 paper maps, but together we will
develop new strategles and explore
future innovations and technological
advances within the printing and
mapping industries

The agreement, and investment, by 0S
highlights our commitment to paper
maps and we're looking forward to
werking with Denmis Maps to further
develop our printed products over the
coming years

The future for paper maps looks

sustainable and we are confident the new
partnership can build on this
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0S8 becomes a Company !

In April 2015 we completed our
transition from a Trading Fund to a
government-owned Company

The Government and Board of

Ordnance Survey decided that operating
as a Company would put the businessin

a much better place to respond to rapidly
changing markets and remain at the heart
of the global geospatial industry

We remain 100% n public ownership, and
the OS5 Board will remain accountable to the
Secretary of State for Business, Innovation
& Skills {BIS)

Qur customers, partners and stakeholders
are ultimately benefiting from a more
efficient and focused business aligned

to their needs The transiticn means we
can provide continued commitment and
efficiencies in the delivery of our public
task, better support the maintenance and
quality of geographic data sets, continue
to support our OpenData programme and
identify where more can be done

It's improved our ability to recruit and
retain skitled employees, particularly for
digital, mobile and data management
skilt sets, which are in great demand, and
we now have greater freedom to manage
our day-to-day operations
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Business update

Public Sector Mapping Agreement
(PSMA} and One Scotland Mapping
Agreement (OSMA)

it’s our aim to encourage greater public
use of our data, and to provide greater
value under the PSMA and OSMA

As of 31 March 2016 there were 4,106
PSMA members, with a net membership
growth of 42 from the previous year
and 110 OSMA members Compared

to last year, the number of new data
orders supplied has increased by 8%
{up from 6,238) New orders via the
download service have increased by 5%
{up from 70%)

We now have 179 public sector related
case studies documenting mitions of
pounds of savings in public expenditure
in central government and local
authorities, and representing £119 364
mtlion per annum ih the current PSMA
value model These are supported by
four guest blogs

There’s continuing interest in the
presurmnption to publish process in our
licensing policy - widening data sets

that can be exempted autematically,
reducing the need for reviews by internal
governance and making it easier for PSMA
and OSMA members to publish their own
data sets based on OS data

As part of our partnerships with
government departments, we held

Aine regional events tn the autumn -
supported by 390 delegates We also held
Your Say sessions in which 85% of those
who participated said they were either
‘satisfied’ or ‘extremely satisfied’ with the
PSMA overall

New Highways product

Following feedback from the PSMA
community, we’ve launched a new
product - QS MasterMap® Highways
Network

Supported by the Department for
Transport, it offers a highly accurate
representation of the read network
and contains accurate information to
allow managing policies, producing
statistics, allocating funding and
supporting legislation

It gives GB coverage of the road network
with enhanced attributions for England
and Wales It combines GeoPlace data

on the National Street Gazetteer and the
Trunk Road Street Gazetteer from local
authorities, Highways England and other
government departments in England and
Wales with OS geometry

ResilienceDirect

Launched in March 2014,
ResilienceDirect™ 1s a secure web-based
platform for the resibence community
to share information among all category
12and 2 emergency responders and
agencies for planning, response

and recovery

Commuissioned by the Cabinet Office and
supported by Ordnance Survey, it was
introduced to enhance multi-agency
planning and communication, and

to enable the resihence community

to fulfil1ts statutory duties under the
Civil Contingencies Act 2004 to share
informatton across agencies

It was widely used duning the winter 2015
flooding, which affected many parts of
the UK, and the winter storms of 2015-16
to share a single view of the cnises
Currently, ResilienceDirect has 15,900
users in 2,371 organisations - numbers
which areincreasing on a weekly basis

APIs

We've been making OS data even more
accessible by launching a suite of new
Application Pragramme interfaces
(APIs) to sit alongside our existing APIs
of OS Places and OS QOpenSpace® 0§
Property Data APl Beta was introduced in
December, merging OS data with other
third party data sets to make valuing a
property easier O5 Maps AP| - released
to existing customersn December - can
help government organisations to share
data, increase efficiencies and save
maoney using our stunming map data In
the coming financial year we will also
roll out OS Names, OS Boundaries and
OS Routes in our new APl Store

AddressBase Islands

We've listened to our customers and
are now pleased to provide consistent

1

geographical addressing wider than
Great Britain AddressBase®islands works
as an add-on to our existing AddressBase
products, either AddressBase Plus or
AddressBase Premium

Used together, it provides coverage for GB
plus the Isle of Man, the Channel Islands
and Northern Ireland

0S becomes a strategic member of
Open Geospatial Consortium

in May 2015 we raised our Open
Geospatial Consortium membership level
to become the first Strategic Member
outside of the USA - reinforcing our
vision to be at the forefront of Standards
development

As a strategic member we'll use

our skills and expertise todrive a
collective and unified approach

to promoting interoperability for

the geospatial industry The new
membershipwill also allow us to
represent Europe, at a strategic level, to
improve the quality of standards globally
and to enable the industry to continue to
innovate and grow

Standards are a key part of achieving
our business goals, but we also
understand they are vital to the industry
as awhole We expect the new level

of strategic membership to deliver
sigmficant opportunities to 0S and
allow us to use our skills and expertise
toinfluence and drive new standards
in ongoing and future geospatial
trends We're particularly keen to see
greater interoperability in the Smart
Cities space

Partners

To expand our global reach, we’ve been
growing and developing relationships
with our commercaal partners We now
have more multi-nattonal partners than
ever using our data

Qur Partner Programme launched in
March and we're targeting activities in
industry groups organised by sector
We've held many webinars on our various
products and hope to expand to share
other areas of our expertise such as
social media
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We've encouraged joint stands at trade
shows such as Digital Construction UK,
the Tour of Britain cycling event and a
flood risk & nsurance event, and we've
hetped people to host events at our head
office in Southampton

Arecent taillored survey of satisfaction
with 0OS revealed very positive results
from our partner community

It's also been the first year of our Partner
Adwisory Council, through which we've
shared thought leadership, explored and
tested our thoughts and ideas, and listened
to our partners about what they need

from us going forward It’s also been an
opportunity to share our product road map

As part of our cngoing commitment

to our ethos of Partner First, we're
channelling partner involvementin
varigus activities We've identified that
the Financial Services sector 1s mutually
hest served by our partnerstaking the
lead, with OS supporting them through
the Partner Programme

The work of our partners touches upon

all areas of life From routing emergency
vehicles to town planning, from
envirgnmental protection to insuring our
homes, from delivering our groceries to
getting us out and active through cycling,
walking and hiking

New management agreement to
benefit location data in the UK and
Ireland

Anew three party agreement between
Ordnance Survey (GB), Ordnance Survey
Ireland {O%1) and Land and Property
Services (LPS) Northern Ireland was
signed in May 2015 to improve access
and availability of mapping services

for customers and government users
operating across the UK and Ireland

The agreement will enable each of the
national mapping organisations, for
the first ime, to act as a single point
of access for customers choosing

to view digital mapping from any of
the three organisations via their web
service platforms

It will benefit business and government
users of location data - from large

utiity and commercial companies to key
government departments and media
organisations

New GIS Roadmap delivered for
Environment Agency — Abu Dhab)

In support of the Abu Dhabi 2030
Environmental Vision, Environment
Agency— Abu Dhabn {EAD), has developed
a partnership with OS International and
created a new GIS Roadmap

0S’s two centuries of experience in
handling geographic information has
been instrumental in helping set EAD's
GIS Strategy for the next five years The
GIS Roadmap we've jointly created will
help EAD step closer to becoming a leader
in the use of geospatial information

and technology

Geovation

For another year our Geovation Programme
has offered a unique opportunity for
developers, innovators and entrepreneurs
with bright 1deas to be guided through

an innovation process The funded

start-up accelerator helps people focus

on developing an idea using location
information and technology through
product creation and commercial
realisation, while paid a wage The altruistic
programme, which now runs out of our
recently-opened Geovation Hub, Is believed
to be the first of its kind 1n Great Britain

Qur ninth Geovation Challenge launched
on 1 December 2015, where we offered
development funding and places on our
Geovation programme for ideas on how
to improve the way we use and manage
water The Challenge attracted a total

of 51 1deas, from which ten finalists were
selected and invited to pitch theirideas to
secure extra support and funding through
the Geovation Frogramme

Those with the best ideas were inwited to
a Geovation Weekend Camp where the
innovators worked on transforming their
idea into a prototype venture

The successfully pitched ventures were
Refillabte Cities Aims to reduce

dependency on plastic bottted water
with a nationwide roll out of an app
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that pinpoints users to free tap water
refill points

building models of sustainable
catchment opportumities, which will slow
the risk of flooding

|
|
Sustainable Catchments Creating i
|

Fix Our Water Asmartphone
crowdsourcing app, which lets users
inform relevant authorities about water
problems, including pollution, flooding,
overflowing drains and breach hotspots

5G Innovation Centre officially opens at
the University of Surrey

We've partnered with the University of
Surrey in opening a state-of-the-art 5G
Innovation Centre

Housing more than 170 researchers and
attracting over £70 million of investment,
including £12 mithon from the Higher
Education Funding Council for England,
the 5G Innovation Centre s the world’s
largest acadermic research centre
dedicated to next generation mobile and
wireless conpectivity

The Centre brings together leading
academic expertise and major industry
partners to define and develep a global
5G network that will radically change lives
across the world

Manchesters world leader in Smart
City technology

In December we were pleased to be part
of a public-private consortium celebrating
Manchester winning a £10m pnize to
become the UK's Internet of Things
Demonstrator, and a world leader in
‘Smart City’ technology

The CityVerve Project aims to test

better services using Internet of Things
technology, which adds sensors and
data analysis to equipment such as
street lamps, vehicles and home heating
equipment These ‘smart’ improvements
will help deliver more persenal, efficient
and flexible products and services

The prize was awarded by the Department
for Culture, Media and Sport
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Future trends in digital mapping

Two reports have outlined the part
geospatial nformation will have in
our future

‘Future Trends in geospatral information
management The five to ten year vision’
1s the second edition of the international
report, which was first published in 2011

This visionary report presents the
thoughts of leaders in the geospatial
world as to the future developments in
mapping and surveying over the next
decade The new trends included within
thereportare Smart Cities and the
Internet of Things, Artificial Intelligence
& Big Data, indoor positioning and
mapping, and integrating statistical &
geospatial information

The ‘AG! Foresight Report 2020 1s made

up of 60 papers from a diverse range

of organisations and industry experts
including Tesco®, Imperial College London®,
the Met Office and the Office of National
Statistics, as well as Ordnance Survey It
states that a truly connected ‘Digital Earth’
can only be achteved through location
intelhigence Acommen thread threugh
the reportis the need for the geographic
information community to tackle 1ssues

of data quality and management, and

to foster a deep understanding of its
relationship with digital data

Again, this report identifies Smart
Cities, the Internet of Things and
Building Information Modelling as key
areas where location intelligence 1s
being used to underpin decisions and
address key social, environmental and
ecanomic challenges

Britain’s getting higher

Our latest surveys show that Ben Nevis

1s taller than oniginally thought Britain's
highest point will now officially appear on
all digital and new paper maps as 1,345m
and not 1,344m

The official increase 1s not the result of a
geological movement The mountain has
‘grown’, because the technology 05 now
uses to survey and measure gives better
accuracy than when it was last surveyed,
and the recent restoration of its iconic tng

pillar gave 0S the perfect opportunity to
take fresh measurements

0S8 maps in the new UK Passport

The tatest UK passport design was
released in Movember 2015 and we were
pleased to see a range of mapping from
0OS OpenData across the pages

A new passport design is launched every
five years, and the theme far the new
design is Creative United Kingdom It
features cultural icons such as William
Shakespeare and landmark structures
including the Angel of the North 0S maps
form a part of the secunty features, and
HM Passport Office have stylised our
vector maps to fit within the new design,
showing places related to the images on
the pages

The Home Office Minister for Immigration,
James Brokenshire, said that it 1s the most
secure passport ever produced for the UK

Finding the right address — a matter of
life or death

An Ordnance Survey software pilot helped
save lives, according to Community First
Responders {CFRs) who used 1t

The prototype mobile web app was

used by a sample of CFRs from across
the country over an eight-week penod
During this time the sample group were
called out to 440 emergency situations,
of which the prototype was used on 270
occasions Ofthose 270 cases, three
involved patients suffering cardiac arrest
whose lives were saved following CPR

CFRs are volunteers who respond to
emergencies, particutarly in rural areas,
providing Basic Life Support to patients
before the arnval of an ambulance

A major difficulty they encounteris
finding patients’ homes, especially when
it's dark or if the home I1s remote or has
neither a number nor a name board

Mark Norbury, National Ambulance
Resilience Unit Coordinator, says ‘There
are three people alive today who might
well not have been, but for the prototype
08 created In two thirds of cases where the
piiot software was used it speeded up the
CFRs response to the patient’s side While
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1tis difficult to identify exactly whether the
earlier arrival of o CFR improved a patient’s
outcome, it was clear in two thirds of the
cases reviewed that the CFR got to patient
quicker with less stress, because of the
ease of finding thewr patient’s house CFRs
appear to be getting more and more calls
i wider aregs than histonically and the
pilot scheme enabled them to respond with
confidence in finding their patient Finding
named houses, especially in the dark, 1s an
absolute life saver'

There are approximately 20,000 CFRs
supporting communities i Great Britan
today, and they respond to around 50,000
emergency calls a year Each CFR covers
an eight mile radius and receives details
of the emergency via an SMS With this
information they then search the Internet
on their mobile device to try and identify
where the addressis The problem CFRs
find with Internet mapping 1s that st only
gives an approximation of an address and
not an exact location, which, when a life
hangs in the balance, loses wital time

New partnership with Hexagon
Geaspatial

In November we announced a new
partnership with Hexagon Geospatial
Through the new agreement, 0S
content = includhing aenalimagery - will
be a part of the Hexagon Smart M App
experience, delivering a wide range of
innovative information services

The Hexagon Smart M App provides a
simplified approach to developing and
interpreting analytics, with the potential
to address concerns for Smart Cities,
migration, security, restlience and
environmental changes

International

Qrdnance Survey International (OS)
works with customers to help them tap
into the multi-million pound potential
of accurate and up-to-date geographic
information We continue to build strong
links with other countries and, to date,
0S5 has won business on four continents
We have a well-defined strategy in
providing customers with accurate

and efficient services, and a strong
track record of working collaboratively
with partners
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Innovation
Research

This year in research has been one of
regeneration after 12 months of interim
leadership In Apnil, we recruited a Chief
Geospatial Scientist in a new role to lead
the Research team They have led a review
of the long-term research direction and
aspirations of the business, resulting in

2 new research strategy, coupled to the
wider business strategy

The three broad focus areas in this
strategy are *Core GIS & Geomatics’,
‘Smart Systems” and ‘Humans and
Geography’ Two new Principal Research
Scientists have been recruited to help
deliver this research — one in Data
Science, and the other in Smart Cittes

Our work s currently formed principally of
co-funded research projects with external
research partners, mostly UK universities,
and mostly delivered through PhD
projects The present portfolio

compnses 15 PhDs at 11 universities plus
post-doctoral research at Newcastle and
Southampton Universities

Research runs from the techmical, such
as machine learning applied to texture
maps to extracting 3D building fascia

detail, though to the qualtative, such

as ethnographic studies of different
communities’ relationships to and
labelling of places in a shared built
environment In response to the new
research strategy we are investing
particularly in new research in Connected
and Autonomous Vehicles and the
Internet of Things as part of the Smart
Systems focus area

At the end of the summer, the Education
team was merged in, to form a new
Research and Education team Thiswill
provide additional synergy to connect our
work in maintaining GIS in the geography
subject area in schools in Great Britain
with support for geospatial teaching and
learning m tigher education

Beyond the Research & Education team,
the business has formed an overarching
Innovation Group to enable further
strategic alignment of the work of the
various innovation and R&D teams,
running fram the short-term, customer
focus of the Consultancy & Techmical
Services team, through the data capture
& management focus of Business Change
& Innovation, to the technical innovation
focus of the Geovation Hub
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Mapping Mars

Using NASA open data, we created

a one-off paper and digital map of

the Martian landscape —to see f
Ordnance Survey mapping has potential
use for future Mars missions

The private sector and space agencies are
in competition to land the first person on
Mars, so we embraced the opportunity

to apply our innovative cartography and
mapping tradecraft to a different planet

The new map - which has generated a
huge amount of tnterest from all over
the world - covers a 3,672 by 2,721km
extent of the Mars surface and has been
produced to a scale of 1 to 4 million

The cartographic style i1s very different

to that of atypical planetary map It’s
identifiable as an OS map due toits

soft colour palette combined with the
traditronal map features such as contours,
gnid lines and the map sheet layout
complete with legend
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Financial review

As thisis the first full year of trading

and the Company was dormant all of the
prior year, there are no comparatives to
the financial information

Financial summary 31 March 2016;

fm
Revenue 146 6
Cost of sales 211
Operating costs {excluding 82
depreciation, amortisation &
impairment)
EBITDA 469
EBITDA% 32%
Depreciation, amortisation & 245
impairment
Corporation tax 49

Profit attnbutable to owners of 181
the Company

Dividend 124
Net assets 1741

Earnings before interest tax
depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA)

The EBITDA outturn of £46 9m was below
expectation due to lower than anticipated
revenue growth This has been driven

by challenging market conditions which
has resulted in longer sales lead times
and time to deliver Despite this there
have been some encouraging contract
wins which have seen the commercial
contractual order book increase during
the year

Revenue

Total revenue comprises both trading
and non-trading revenue - the latter
relating principally to cost recharges to
GeoPlace LLP, a joint venture company It
was a challenging year for revenue, which
resulted in a smatl overall growth on the
prior year, delivered under the Trading
Fund - with OS sales to consumers being
more bucyant

Operating costs

The major single line of expenditure,
direct and indirect employee costs, has
been managed within the expectation
for the year This has bean achteved at
the same trme as we've invested in new
talent, bringing a number of recruits into
senlor and technical roles as we prepare
for future growth

Dividends
We declared a dividend of £12 4m to cur

shareholder the Department for Business,
Innovation & Skills, i March 2016

15

Statement of financial position
Cash

We generated a net cash inflow of £43 Om
from operating activities during the

year and a further £5 4m received from
it ventures Qurcapital expenditure
programme {£29 7m) included the
investment in our Geospatial Content
Improvement Programme and

Multt Resolution Data Programme

Non-current assets

Our non-current assets are principally

Explorer House Our head office in
Southampton

Geospatial Database Management
System The operating system central

to the entire business 1s the Geospatial
Database Management System Thisis the
repository for all data content from which
all products are derived

Geospatial Content Improvement
Programme The new programme for the
improvement of urban content willrun
over five years Increasing demand for
more features and greater urban detail
has made this programme a necessity to
maimtain 0§ MasterMap's wortd-leading,
best of class status
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Other entities

In support of Ordnance Survey’s strategic
goals, as outlined in the Busmess review
{page 10), Ordnance Survey operates

and holds investments in the following
subsidianies and shared ownership
entities

100% subsidianies

Ordnance Survey Lessure Limited (OSL)
OSL provides a direct retail offer to
consumers who prefer to purchase 0S
products and services online Revenuen
this business has performed particularly
well with strong across-the-board
product sales However, revenue from the
enhanced mobile app, 0S MapFinder®,
which was available for the full year

to Android® users as well as to 10%®
users, and our Custom Made maps was
particularly strong

Total revenue of £2 8m and the EBITDA
of £0 0m

Ordnance Survey International LLP {OS1}
051 15 our nascent International business,
which aims to leverage our world-leading
reputation in the geospatial industry

and sell our expertise to government
agencies in other countries with a primary
focus in the Middle East 0S| generated
turnover of £0 4m and a EBITDA loss of
£12m Thiswas a rather disappointing
outcome, but with a strong order pipeline
going inte 2016-17

Shared ownership entities

GeoPlace LLP (GeoPlace)

GeoPlace, 15 a 50 50 joint venture with

the Local Government Association, which
has developed a new addressing product,
licensed to the Company GeoPlace
generated a profit share return of £4 3m
and £5 3m in cash was returned to the
Company during the year

Astigan Limited (Astigan)

Astigan 1s a 51% owned subsidiary which
15 consolidated into the Group accounts as
1t has control of the Board The objective
of the Company 1s to research new ways
of remote data collection We see this

as a medium-term investment and have
entered into a Jjoint venture with technical
experts intherrfield Inthe year, Astigan
made a loss of £1 2m

PointX Limited (PointX)

PoIntX® 1s a 50% joint venture with
Landmark information Group® During
the year PointX generated a profit share
of £01m

Denmis Maps

The Company took a 25% share of Dennis
Maps imited in December 2015 The
Group profit share generated)s nil

The main objective of the investment I1s
for us to secure the supply of OS paper
maps In addition, we will develop new
strategies and explore future innovations
and technological advances within the
printing and mapping industry Further
information on this investment can be
found on page 10
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Key performance indicators

The group key performance indicators are
the primary measures the board use to
monitor the Group’s performance

Revenue £146 6m
EBITDA% 32%
Free cashilow £211m
Net Promotor Score 37

Revenue - isthe total consolidated group
revenue recognised on the statement of
profit or loss

EBITDA% - defined as operating profit
adding back amortisation, depreciation
and impairment divided by revenue as a
percentage

Free cashflow - defined as total net cash
flow with dividend and tax payments
added back {excluding cash from the
transfer of trade and assets from the
Qrdnance Survey Trading Fund)

Net Promotor Score —i1s an index ranging
from -100 to 100 that measures the
willingness of customers to recommend
a company's products or services to
others It’s used as a proxy for gauging
the customer’s overall satisfaction with

a company's product or service and the
customer’s loyalty to the brand
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Corporate and social responsibility

Education services

During the 201415 school year we ran over 45 teacher training
workshops throughout the country The training enabled
teachers to explore the full capabtlities of cur award winning
Digimap for Schools service and let them have some ‘hands-on’
use Inthis penod, more than 800 pnmary and secondary
teachers have taken advantage of this traiming opportunity

The number of schools who are registered users of the
Digimap for Schools service has increased to over 2,500 and
for the first time we have 1,000 secondary schools subscribed
A major addition to the service has been the inclusion of 1950s
data set, courtesy of the National Library of Scotland With
theinclusion of this data, and with the already included ¥890s
mapping, schools can now look at change in their locality
across three eras

Corporate charity

In March, 366 OS employees voted for the 2015-16 Corporate
Charity The winner with 42 1% of the votes was Holding Little
Hands, a charity supporting Southampton’s neonatal unit
Between 1April and 31 March we held more than 100 fundraising
events for Holding Little Hands These ranged from simple cake
sales, to football tournaments, secand-hand map sales, pamper
evening, fun Christmas activities and concerts from QS choir
Off The Scale

The biggest fundraising events have been

October2015
October2015
July 2015

Secand-hand map sale £3,358

April/June/November 2015

Off The Scale concerts £1,630
Dinner dance £2,500

Thanks to everyone's generosity we raised £20,000 for Holding
Little Hands This 1s a record-breaking amount for 0S

December 2015
March
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Employee match funding

To ensure as many employees as possible benefit from

the limited amount of funding available, we will match
individual fundraising activities to a maximum of £100 per
chanty, per employee Each year a set amount will be available
for match funding, which will be allocated on a first come, first
served basis

Since 1 Apnil 2015 we have donated a further £1,2651n
employees’ match funding to

ist Hedge End Brownies Mary’s Meals

Cancer Research National Rheumatoid Arthritis Society
Poppy Appeal
Prostate Cancer UK

ShelterBox

Football for Cancer

Hope and Aid Direct

Local Community Support
Local Parish Church
Lordshill 10k

Lymphoma Research

The Brain Tumour Charity
Twyford Waterworks Trust

Williams Syndrome Foundation

Macmillan Cancer Support

Young Enterprise
Makaton

Volunteerning

Throughout the year, 169 of our employees took a Volunteer
Day These days have been used to support many different
charities, causes and projects

These include The Nuffield Theatre, St Mary’s Village Hail,
Witdlife Trust (Blacka Moor West Sheffield), Pondhead
Conservation, and the New Forest National Park to name
but a few
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Work experience

n 2015 we had interest from 25 potential candidates {four more
than last year)

We offered places to 14 students (one more than last year) Two
placements were cancelled by the students, six places were
declined by 0S {due to no space left in the chosen departments)
and three applications are still pending

In addition, four students have completed work experience
through a known contact within 05

We have 20 employees on our database who are willing to take
an work experience students for a week 1n these departments

= Ordnance Survey Limited
« Content & Data Products
» Programme Delwery Unit
+ Informatign Systems

+ Cartography

- Operations

« Remote Sensing

« Business Change

= Marketing

» Creative Design

The Business Centre took over the responsibility for work
experience in April 2015, and after an overhaul of the scheme,
predicted to increase the numbers of students placed by
10% This target has been met, with applications still being
submitted

In 2016-17 we again hcpe to tncrease the placements by 10%

This will involve further promotian of work expenence
and the benefits to OS, which began with a rolling Internal
Communications programme

We already work closely with the local education business
partnership (EBP South)

We're looking to further enhance the scheme, and are
constdering the following

- Contacting careers services directly (if necessary)

« Introducing an optional interview {either on or off site) so the
process has an ‘authentic’ feel

« Introducing a pre-placement chat as standard, so the
student isn't overwhelmed on their first day

« Organising building tours with the Head of Building &
Property Services
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Community use of the OS Business Centre

Over the last 12 months we've had 28 (six less than last year)
bookings from the community Infant schools, universities,
Hampshire Fire & Rescue, and Hampshire Constabulary are just
afew government organisations who have benefited from our
facilities at Explorer House

We offer our rooms and AV support free of charge The
community bookers must pay for the catering costs, but
registration, name badges and technical support are provided
at no cost

We send out feedback forms to all bookers after their events
and we are delighted with the high praise and compliments we
receive on our building, facilities and customer service
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Employee information

Equality and diversity

We have a diversity and equal opportumities policy whichis
reqularly reviewed and which can be found in our Employee
Handbook on ourIntranet for employees

Human Resources continue to work closely with managers
on health and attendance 1ssues Referrals are madeto
our occupational health provider for expert advice when
appropriate

Reasonable adjustments (long- and short-term) continue to be
made in the workplace to enable employees to continue in their
roles These include changes to equipment as well as working
practices

Employee ratio

The table below provides a breakdown of employees by career
level and gender as at 31 March 2016

Career Level Male  Female Total
Non-Executive Director and board

members 4 ! 5
Executive Leadership team 8 0 8
Senior Manager 20 6 26
Professional Leader 25 7 32
Other roles 809 318 1,127
TOTAL 866 332 1,198

Employee sickness and absence

Employee absence 1s monitored and return-to-work interviews
are held to ensure appropriate support or adjustments can be
offered The data below s for 2015-16 as at 31 March 2016

05, total days lost 08, average External, average
due to sickness sickness days lost dayslost per
per employee employee
5,034 42 83

Health and Safety

Encouragingly, recorded acaidents have been reducing
year-on-year, compared with 2013, averall recorded accidents
have reduced by 20% The two major causes of acaidents—

1) vehucle accidents and 2} slips, trips ond falis have both reduced
by 45%

Vehicle accidents and slips, trips and falls are mainly reported
by those working in the field, at times in difficult conditions and
terrains With roads increasingly becoming busier and with the
increase in new house builds which require surveys, we believe
the on-going downward trend in recorded acaidents shows a
progressive and positive attitude to health and safety
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Off-payroll engagements

As required by the Alexander review, we disclose all off-payroll
engagements which exceed six months We use the services

of contractors provided by third-party organisations to cope
with peaks of demand on resources and comply with the
recommendations outhned in the Alexander review Assurance
1s provided annually to BIS thatin all cases we have sought and
gained legally binding assurance that indwidual contractors
have and will pay the nght amount of tax and National Insurance

Off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2016 for more than £220
per day and that {ast for more than six months are as follows

Number of existing engagements

Number that have existed for less than one year at
time of reporting

Number that have existed for between one and two B
years at time of reporting

Number that have existed for between two and three
years at time of reporting

Number that have existed for between three and four
years at time of reporting
Number that have existed for four or more years at -

trme of reporting

Number of new engagements, or those that reached
six months in duratron, between 1 April and 31 March

Number of the above, which include contractual
clauses giving the department the right to request
assurance in relation to income tax and National
Insurance obligations

Number for whom assurance has been requested
Number for whom assurance has been received
Number for whom assurance has not been received

Number that have been terminated as a result of
assurance not being received

The further 14 assurances have been requested post 1 Apnil 2016
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Sustainability

As Ordnance Survey Limited acquired the continuation of

the trade and functions of the Ordnance Survey Trading fund,
the Sustainability information presented makes reference

to the continuation of the trade and function through use

of comparatives.

Ordnance Survey Limited is in the final stages of creating a new
Environmental Management System aligned to 1SO14001:2015.
This will set new targets to increase resource efficiencies

and decrease emissions in line with the incumbent Greening
Government Commitments 2020, international agreements,
such as COP21 and the UN’s Sustainable Development Goals.
Ordnance Survey Limited is coming under increasing pressure
from its stakeholders, including customers and suppliers, to
attain an array of sustainable development criteria.

Ordnance Survey Limited is a growing organisation with
aspirations to have a more international reach. A careful
balance between 0S's environmental impact and climate
change mitigation efforts must be struck when potentialty more
emissions will be generated from OS8's business activities.

The reader will note that the previous five years have been
included, with the data from the old head office at Remsey
Road omitted (FY 2009-10 and 2010-11). This makes for
commensurate comparisons between accounting years.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Operational assets and functions of Ordnance Survey that
impact the environment via emissions, waste and resource
depletion are included in the scope of this report (buildings,
flaet vehicles and travel).

The graph right and table opposite show that electricity
consumption at Explorer House has the highest environmental
impact of all 0S’s emissions. The emissions associated with
electricity usage dropped by 12% in 2015-16 due to two factors;
moré¢ efficient running of plant and a more favourable emission
factor due ta coal fired power stations closing (less carbon
intense electricity production). inreal terms, the amount of
electricity consumed only dropped by 5%.

Scope 1 emissions have fallen this year (13%) for the secand time
in a row. This reflects less business car miles being travelled and
the ground source heat pump working at capacity {(negating the
need to fire the gas boilers).

However, business travel-related emissions have risen by 22%
compared with 2014-15, This is the result of more international
travel, as 05 is expanding into international markets.
Interestingly, the number of domestic flights has decreased by
28% in comparison to last year, illustrating the international
aspect of strategic focus. Scope 3 emissions relating to the
surveying aircraft have risen sharply, due to the drive to capture
mgore aerial data.

Energy consumption at Explorer House and the Gloucester

Data Centre decreased by 3% and 1% respectively, with kWh/m?
values falling at both sites. As last year, heating requirements
have been relatively low due to another mild winter. Less IT load
is attributable to the 1% decrease at the Gloucester Data Centre.

Greenhouse gas emissions tCOze

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

-

2011-12 2012-13  2013-14  2014-15  2015-16

[ ] Total Scope 1 emissions {gas, fuel for fleet cars and
fugitive emissions from air chillers),

" Total Scope 2 emissions {off-site electricity generation).
(] Total Scope 3 emissions {transmission loss of electricity).

Emissions attributable to Scope 3 official business travel
(rail, taxi, air, underground).

Emissions attributable to Scope 3 Managed Assets
(Gloucester Data Centre, including fugitive emissions and
electricity consumption).

Emissions attributable to Scope 3 Managed Assets
{Cessna surveying aircraft).
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Greenhouse gas emissions

Absolute metrics

Scope/emission/energy use

2012-13

2013-14

Nan-financial indicators
(tCOse)

Total Scope 1 emissions (gas, fuel for fleet cars
and fugitive emissions from air chillers)

676.0

8839

Total Scope 2 emissions (off-site electricity
generation}

2,987.0

2,915.6

Total Scope 3 srnissions {transmission loss of
electricity)

236.0

2493

Total amissions attributed to electricity
consumption {Scope 2 and 3}

3,222.9

3,164.9

Emissions attributable to Scope 3 official
businass travel {rail, taxi, air, underground)

381.8

7346

Emissions attributable to Scope 3 Managed
Assets (Gloucester Data Centre, including
fugitive emissions and electricity consumption)

470.6

4627

Emissions attributable to Scope 3 Managed
Assets [Cessna surveying aircraft)

153.1

nz.9

152.6

177.8

291.3

TOTAL EMISSIONS (ALL SCOPES)

4,674.4

4,876.1

5,403.4

5,244.5

5,033.6

Related energy
consumption (kWh)

Electricity {Mains ‘Green’ Tariff - EH and GDC

7,518,130

7,439,107

7,499,348

6,977,842

6,663,793

Gas

447,319

480,274

979,967

483,972

579,692

TOTAL kWh Consumption

7,965,449

7,919,381

5,479,313

7,461,314

7,243,490

Financiat indicators {(£)

Expenditure on energy (gas, alectricity, BUS
fuel, GDC electricity, Cessna fuel)

£363,908

£356,061

£1,336,830

IARIERITY

£1,064,692

Expenditure on CRC (including fees and
allowance)

£24,308

£24,380

46,877

£57,721

£53,487

Expenditure on official business travel (rail, hire
cars, taxis, air, BUS leasing)

£2,226 708

£2,625,968

£2 604,372

£2,204,954

£2,335,830

TOTAL expenditure on energy, CRC and official
business travel

£2,614,924

£3,006,409

£3,988,080

£3,265,746

£3,454,009

Normalised metrics

Asset

2012+13

2013-14

2014-15

201516

kWh/m?

Explarer House

4619

498.5

4414

4273

kWh/m?

Gloucester Data Centre

4,319.5

4,358

3,645

3,623

g COze/km travelled

BUS mileage (kilometres)

161.42

155.45

159.66

156.19

g COze/km travelled

Hire vehicles mileage (kilometres)

186.73

178,35

164.89

20.98

Number of instances

Domestic flights

268

REL]

445

321

kg COa¢/passenger-flight

Domestic flights

260.0

2889

260.2

260.5

kg CO2e/passenger-flight

Short-haul flights

3404

309.8

269.8

295.2

kg CO2¢/passenger-flight

Leng-haul flights

1,787.3

2,380.5

2,2997

2,161.3

kg COse perjourney

Domestic rail travel

6.6

nr

10.9

10.9

Financial breakdown of
business travel

BUS lease

nfa

£1,545,040

£1,569,901

£1,484 156

BUS fuel costs

n/a

£332,350

£316,578

£217,207

Hira car costs

nfa

£142,547

£39,721

£54,874

Domestic rail travel {including underground)

nfa

£231,437

£243,352

£297,136

Domestic flights

n/a

£63,186

£77,210

£49,524

Short-haul flights

£55,855

£55,018

£128,170

Long-haul flights

£193,730

£184.419

£280,392

Domestic taxis

£39,223

£35,330

141,568

TOTAL

£2,604,372

£2,521,532

£2,553,037

2]

ORDNANCE SURVEY LIMITED -~ ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16




Finite resource consumption: water and paper

Water consumption has fluctuated year-on-year and reflects
the staffing leveis at head office. In comparison with 201415,
there has been a 4% reduction in absolute terms and 6% as

an FTE metric. About 28% of the water consumed at Explorer
House comes from the rainwater harvester, but when both
mains (Scope 2 water} and rain water {Scope 1 water) usage is
combined, 05 achieved a ‘poor practice’ benchmark of 6.39m?*
per FTE in 201516,

Total water consumed per FTE

7

1

|
| J

2012-13  2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Further work is needed to confirm exactly how the additional
water is being utilised before new targets can be set.
Sub-metering the water supply will provide the required level
of detail.

Water footprinting (‘embedded water’ or ‘Scope 3 water’)
methodologies are still in theirinfancy and OS awaits guidance
from Government before it starts quantifying the indirect
impacts of water usage {energy used in abstraction, treatment
and transportation of water and the embedded water usage of
and in products).

Paper consumption has decreased by 34% compared with
last year. Some of this reduction can be attributed to having
less printers in head office. However, heavy grades of paper
are being used by the digital print services, which fall outside
the reporting scope (80-100g/m?). Therefore, less light weight
paper is being procured and used. Conversely, FSC virgin
papers are primarily used in the digital print service, which
has a potentially larger environmental impact than using
recycled paper. So, we are in a position where despite our
paper procurement decreasing, we are using heavier and
non-recycled papers in lieu of recycled alternatives,

Waste minimisation and management

Total waste arisings have reduced significantly compared
with 2014-15. This will mostly be due to more accurate
weight figures being provided by the waste contractor,
Recycling rates have alsc increased, due to better recycling
capability of our waste contractors. What is notableis the
reduction of waste going to incineration and landfill, This is
reftective of the waste industry diverting mare waste into the
recycling streams.

Q5 ran a series of waste promotions in 2015-16 to help the
separation of waste at source, However, more needs to be done
to limit the waste arisings and increase recycling rates as per
the Waste (England and Wales) (Amendments) Regulations 2014,
This will reduce the amount of emissions associated with the
transport, processing and decomposition of wastes and reduce
the need for extracting virgin raw materials.

Sustainable procurement

The Procurement team has included specific questions

about management and monitoring of environmental issues
in tendering documentation sent to potential suppliers

and onward supply chains. These questions cover carbon
footprint, energy reduction, staff travel and recycling targets.

Operationally our print supplieris required to print all our maps
on paper that is either approved by Forest Stewardship Council
or Pan European Forest Council, and wherever possible we use
Government Framewaork contracts where Greening Government
Camymitments are in place.

Biodiversity Action Plan and Climate Change Adaptation Plan

0S does not have an official Biodiversity Action Plan or Climate
Change Adaptation Plan, We are 2iming to bring these under
the remit of the new EMS, The unmanaged ‘wild’ area consisting
of native British flora to the east of Explorer House can be used
to directly increase the biotdwersity at the Head Office site.

Future improvements in sustainability

0S5 will be launching its new EMS, which will have a more
comprehensive scope and new targets, taking a life-cycle
perspective of its emissions. We intend to scrutinise our supply
chain more to manage our emission/resource reduction efforts
and refresh our approach to social responsibility. It is proposed
that an Integrated Reporting framework is used to report
environmental and social KPIs to the business to evaluate its
sustainable development performance.
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Finite resources consumption - water and paper procured

Absolute metrics 2011-12 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16

Non-financial Water consumed (m?) | Mains water supply {(Scope 2) 5,234 4,559 8,708 5.341
indicators (m3)

Harvested rainwater used (Scope 1) 812 1,538 1,445 1,492
TOTAL CONSUMPTION 6,046 8,09 1,153 6,832
Normalisad metrics Water consumed (m?) | Mains water supply per FTE 4.85 4.13 5.4 5.400

Harvested rainwater used per FTE - - 1.39 1.37 1.40
TOTAL CONSUMPTION per FTE 4.85 n 5.52 6.78 .39

Absolute metrics Paper procured Procurement (through Banner GGC) 5.41 7.03 6.04 5.91 3.93
(tonnes}

Procurement through FM contractor nfa n/a 15.8 454 3.00
TOTAL PAPER PROCURED 5.41 7.03 21.84 10.46 6.92

Financialindicators (£) | Water consumed (£) Mains water supply and treatment £15,516 | £14,383 | £15,258 | £17,990 | £18,495

Used harvested rainwater treatment - - £1,482 £3,215 £3,416
TOTAL WATER SUPPLY AND TREATMENT | £15,516 | £14,383 | £16,741 | £21,206 | £21,911

Waste

Absolute metrics 201213 | 2013-14 | 2014-i5

Non-financial | Total waste arisings (tonnes) 232 128.30 B6.53
indicators
{tonnes)

Non- Waste recycled/reused (excluding ICT) 175 189 90.17 56,20
hazardous
waste

ICT equipment reused/recycled externally nfa 2,25 6.92 10.92

Waste composted 0.21 4,32 433

Waste sent to incinerator/landfill 54 41 2514 14,43

Hazardous | Batteries {recycled) n/a nfa 0.0 0.07
waste

HCFC equipment (fridges and other electrical squipment) n/a n/a 1.01 0

Fluorescent lamps (recycled) nfa n/a 0.08 0.08 -

Toner cartridges (recycled) n/a nfa 0.5 0.45 0.8

Sanitary waste (not recycled) n/a nja 0.06 0.06 0.05

Financial Total disposal costs (£) £25,185 £15,832 £32,915 £29,821 | £22,905

indicators (£) ., TOTAL NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE COSTS Inclusive | £15,832 | 27,717 | £24,849 | £18,764
hazardous
waste

Waste recycled/reused Inclusive | £15,832 13,729 £13.210 £14,655

ICT equipment reused/recycled externally nfa nfr £10,588 £8,365 £1,190

Waste composted nil nil nil nil nil

Waste sent to landfill Included in total waste cost
{same as waste recycled/reused)

Hazardous | TOTAL HAZARDOUS WASTE COSTS nfa £5,197 £4,971 £4,141
wastle

Batteries (recycled) nfa £427 £183 £187

HCFC equipment {fridges and other electrical equipment) nfa £135 - ENp

Fluorescent lamps (recycled) nfa £150 £75 -

Toner cartridges {recycled) n/a £175 £379

Sanitary waste (not recycled) n/a £4,311 £3,464
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Ordnance Survey Audit 2nd Risk Committee (OSARC) and the Strategy
Board reviewed the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business and has
summarised them as foltows

+ Lack of scalability and pace reduces competitiveness in an increasingly
global market

- Theramd change of Government policy could result in a mismatch with
Ordnance Survey’s long term strategy

+ Increasing cyber and data corruption nisksin a data-led environment could
interrupt business or lead to reputational damage

+ Opportunities to gain full value from existing and future intellectual property
are not realised

» Attraction and retention of appropriate people and skills to maximise capability
and knowledge

Further details on risks are included in the Governance statement on page 25

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Nigel Clifford

Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016
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Governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As Chief Executive Officer of

Ordnance Survey (0S) | fulfil the role of
Accounting Officer | have responsibility
for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement

of 0S’s policies, aims and objectives,
while safeguarding the public funds

and departmental assets for which | am
personally responsible, in accordance
with the responsibilities assigned to me in
Managing Public Money

The purpose of the
Governance statement

The Governance statement, for which

I, as Accounting Officer take personal
responsibility, 1s intended to give a
clear understanding of the dynamics of
the business and its control structure

It explains how 05 has comphed with
the principles of good governance

and reviews the effectiveness of its
governance arrangements

The Governance framework

Roles and high-level responsibilities
wrthin the governance framework include
the following

Shareholder Executive OS5 reportsto BIS
through the Shareholder Executive which
advises BIS ministers on the management
of the Government’s interest in OS, and

a Shareholder Executive representative
sits on the OS Board From 1Apnl 2016
Shareholder Executive was merged with
UK Financial Investments to become UK
Government Investments

0OS Board of Directors Comprisesa
Non-Executive Chair and up to four other
Non-Executive Directors in additton to
the Executive Directors and it meets

at least sixtimes a year ltsrole 1sto
challenge and support the Executive
team in determining the 0S long-term
strategy and wision to ensure 0S and

1ts group businesses remain relevant
and effective and deliver against the
pubhic task, policies and objectives

set for it by Ministers The OS Boardis
the principal oversight body for 05 It
recewves submissions from each part of
the orgamsation and group businesses
to monitor perfarmance against key
performance indicatorsincluding the
business plan and budget The key
performance indicator data is provided
via established and appropnately
controlled systems and financial
performance and forecasts are reviewed
at each meeting providing appropnate
oversight and assurance to the QS Board

Accounting Officer and Chief Executive
Officer As Chief Executive Officerlam
responsible for the day-to-day leadership
of 0S | have responsibility for the proper,
effective and efficient use of public

funds and the stewardship of 0$ assets

| am accountable to the Minister for

the performance of 0Sn accordance
with the Shareholder Framework
document, the corporate strategy and OS
performance momtors
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Executive Committee Respansible for
all operational matters at a corparate
or multi-group level, ensuring the
implementation of the strategy agreed
by the Board, managing the resulting
operations efficiently and effectively,
and making strategic recommendations
to the Board as and when appropnate
The Executive Committee i1s chaired by
the Chief Executive Officer and meets
once a week

Audit and Risk Committee (OSARC)

Is responsible for providing assurance
to me as Accounting Officer that the
organisation’s system of governance,
risk management and internal control
1s operating effectvely Itis chaired by
a Non-Executive Director supported by
a further two Non-Executive Directors
The Chair annually assesses whether
the Committee has discharged its
responsibilities effectively, in accordance
with its terms of reference

Remuneration Committee |Is responsible
for reviewing and recommending
Executive Directors’ and Senior Manager
Heads’ salaries, performance-related pay,
taxable benefits and agency bonuses

It s chared by a Non-Executive Director
Further information on the work of the
Remuneration Commuttee can be found in
the report on Directors remuneration on
page 33

Nomination Committee Is responsible
for agreeing Executive and Non-Executive
appointments and terminations,
reviewing succession plans for Executives
and Non-Executives, recommending
remuneration packages and other

terms and conditions for approval by

the Remuneration Committee and
undertaking an annual skills audit of the
Non-Executive Directors to ensure there
15 an appropriate mix of skills Itis chaired
by a Non-Executive Director
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Attendance at Board and Committee meetings in 201516 was as follows

Name and Title 0S Board OSARC Remuneration &
Nominations Committees

Financial year period Numberof Attendance Numberof Attendance Numberof Attendance
i April 2015 - 31 March 2016 meetings meetings meetings
Non-Executive Directors

Jacques Cadranel, Non-Executive Director 6 6 3 3 0 0
{fram June 2015)

Mike Carr, Non-Executive Director, 6 6 3 3 6 6
Remuneration Committee Chair

Michael Harnson, Shareholder Executive 2 2 1 i 2 2
{from January 2016)

Stephen Lake, Non-Executive Director, 6 6 3 3 0 Q
OSARC Chair (from June 2015)

Cratg Lester, Shareholder Executive 5 5 0 0 5 5
{to January 2016}

Sir Rob Margetts CBE, Non = Executive Chaur, 6 6 0 0 6 6
Nomination Committee Chair

Rob Varley, Non-Executive Director 1 1 1 i 0 0
(to June 2015)

Plers White MBE, Non-Executive Director, 1 1 1 1 0 0

OSARC Charr {to June 2015)
Executive Directors

|

Neit Ackroyd, Executive Director 6 6 3 3 0

Nigel Clifford, Chief Executive Officer
{from June 2015)

Andrew Loveless, Executive Director 6 6 1 1

Clive Mosey, Executive Director (from 3 3 i 1 0 0
MNovember 2015)

lan Nunn, Executive Director {to August 2015) 2 2 1 ] 0 0

During the year the members of the Executive Leadership team and the Non-Executive Board also attended meetings as required
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Board effectiveness

There have been a number of changes to
the Board membership this year with my
appointment as the new Chief Executive
Officer n June 2015, the appomntment

of four new members to the Executive
leadership team

The board i1s planning to conduct

an annual Board effectiveness and
performance evaluation in the coming
year This evaluation will cover the
frequency, methods of working and
arrangements for meeting, as well as
the governance arrangements, the
balance of agenda items, topics for
discussion, development of strategy and
depth of debate

The Chair of OSARC provides me with
an annual report on the effectiveness
of the Commuttee in discharging its
responstbilities

All of the Directors bring their own
judgement to the major matters affecting
0S and each of the Non-Executive
Directorsis considered by OStobe
independent, with the exception of Michael
Harrson and Craig Lester who are the
shareholder representatives on the Board

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

With effect from Apnl 2015 the entire
functions, business and assets of the

08 Trading Fund were transferred to
Ordnance Survey Limited, a private
company lhmited by shares and wholly
owned by the Secretary of State for
Business, Innovation & Skills QS has
considered the UK Corporate Governance
Code in designing its governance
processes and arrangements to align with
best practice as far as s possible Areview
of Governance processes against best
practices was conducted by Internal Audit
In 2015-16

The review noted a need to ensure the
Board formally agrees and publishes

its terms of reference to demonstrate
appropnate discharge of its duties In
addition and as noted above in the Board
effectiveness section, an annual Board
performance and effectiveness evaluation
has not been carried out this financral year

Protecting personal data

During 2015-16 any data compromise
and data loss mcidents were logged and
investigated, but were not considered to
present substantial harm or distress to
the data subject, so were not reparted to
the Information Cormmissioner’'s Office

The Information Assurance and Security
teamn seeks to ensure OS continues to
understand 1ts obligations to comply with
the Data Protection Act 1998

The Risk and Internal Control
Framework

Qur strategy for nsk management 1s
designed to achieve a cost-effective
balance between mitigation and
acceptance of nsk Risks are pro-actively
identified, assessed and managed at

all levels of the organisation so that
exposure to risk, ncluding information
risk, 1s captured, reported and
maintained at an acceptable level Risk
management is supported through the
key governance and decision-making
groups Senior management takes
responsibility for embedding a consistent
risk and control framework throughout
the organisation The Internal Audit team
assesses the systems of governance, risk
and control via a planned programme of
assurance work

Strategic nisks are regularly reviewed

at Executive Committee to assess the
relevance, completeness and adequacy
of mitigating contrels The Chief Financial
Officerin his role as Chief Risk Officer1s
responsible for monitoring risk, reporting
to OSARC and the Board on the adequacy
of the strategic nsk management
process The Internal Audit team has
used the strategic risk register to inform
its risk-based internal audit programme
and conducted a series of Risk Maturnity
reviews across different business
functions to evaluate the effectiveness

of the risk management praocess This
work dentified a number of areas of
good practice with some improvements
recommended to the nsk management
processes across the business
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Maintaining and demonstrating a strong
control environment s an important

part of ensuning the business meets its
objectives and goals During 2015-16 the
Head of Risk and Assurance introduced

a contro! self-assessment and annual
assurance statement process to

provide me with assurance that the risk
management, governance and control
systems established by business units are
reliable and effective It has also prowided
a framework for management to review,
assess and vahdate the operational
effectiveness of theirinternal controls

The assessment conducted in 2015-16
was responded to positively and was
successful in reabsing a number of
benefits for the business such as

« Improved awareness of nsk and
controls among management and
staff,

« Structured approach to improving
the controls framework through the
arganisation,

« Enhanced responsibility and
accountabihty for nisks and controls
among management and staff,

= Highlighted best practices and
opportunities to improve business
performance, and

+ Provided afocus on areas requiring
management and/or Internal Audit
attention
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Summary nisk profile

OSARC reports to the Board and 15
satisfied OS 1s managing its risk profile
appropriately This opinion has been
formed in conjunction with the Risk and
Assurance function

The following high-level themes have
been included within the nisk profile
duning the year

Scalability and pace

Scalability and pace are /mportantin
ensunng OS5 has the ability to create
competitive advantage and vafue from
new and existing customers, products
and servicesn an increasingly global
market Our strategy is geared to
developing our capabilities to secure
alternative revenue sources

Government policy

0S5 has imited influence on government
policy Changesin government policy
(inctuding European Directives) could
impact the organisation's ability to deliver
overall business strategy and would
require plans and strategies to be revised
appropriately 0S seeks to maintan a
dialogue with our mimisters, UKGI and
other stakeholders to ensure the impact
of agreed policy or open consultations

1s understood

Cyber security

The increase in frequency and complexity
of cyber-attacks and their focus on
financial gain requires the organisation
to be hughly vigilant OS continuesto
develop and implement actions such

as the Critical Controls Improvement
Programme and the Technology Platform
Strategy to keep pace with the rapidly
changing cyber landscape and strengthen
our defence against cyber-attack Cyber
Essentials PLUS accreditation was gatned
n 2015

Intellectual property

To maximise Its revenue earmng potential
from products and intellectual capital,
0S needs to take steps to protectits
investments The business 1s improving
its configuration to be able to ‘sell’ its
knowledge and to grow new revenue
streams OS needs to be able to identify
how to maximise revenue generating
opportunities

Investment portfolio

The strategy adopted by the business
requires significant change, much of

it predicated on investment in change
projects If the wrong projects are chosen
through a failure to priontise correctly

or projects do not deliver the planned
benefits to agreed time, cost and quality
measures, the strategy 1s nsked

Work has been done to mitigate this
risk - and the 2016-17 budget planning
process has clarified the budget to

run the current business and the
transformation programme to deliver
our 2020 model in the *Run the Existing’
portfolio change initiatives have been
prniantised and selected having taken into
account benefits, capacity and capability
These changes have been agreed and
communicated to the business and so the
inherent risk or starting point for this nisk
1s now a lower likelihood than it has been
Inrecent years

Attracting and retaining appropriate
people skills

An over-reliance on critical roles creates
single points of failure and imits our
capacity to deliver If left for a prolonged
penod it negatively effects employee
engagement and productivity There are
roles which require a depth of knowledge
and understanding of our products, data
and technologtes which can be difficult

to find in the market, it's acknowledged
that OS needs to grow our own geospatal
expertise to deliver the business strategy
Mrtigating actions such as talent and
succession planning, though longer-term,
are being realised
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People and tax assurance

As an organisation with significant
intellectual property, working tn a
constantly evolving industry, 05 1s rebiant
on the skills, knowledge and integrity

of ouremployees We need to be abte to
respond quickly to new and emerging
requirements, while maintaining

the efliciency and effectiveness of
operations We do this by training

our employees, providing adequate
opportunittes for development, career
progression and financial reward

These risks are addressed through
appropnate recruitment activities, talent
dentification with tadored training
programmes, graduate schemes,
internships and recognition schemes

We use the services of contractors to
cope with peaks of demand on resources
and comply with the recommendatrons
outiined in the HM Treasury Review of
the tax arrangements of public sector
appointees

Information securnity

0S8 considers the confidentiality, integnity
and availabibty of its informatton to be of
high impartance The Senior Information
Risk Owner s an Executive Director who
is responsible for the management of
information risk at Board level The Sentor
Information Risk Owner i1s supported

by Executive Director Information

Asset Owners, who own and address
risks to their information assets The
Information Assurance and Security

team provide assurance to stakeholders
that governance structures, policies and
processes are in place to protect the
confidentiality, integrity and availability
of the organsation’s information

As noted above, 0S achieved Cyber
Essentials PLUS accreditation during
2015-16
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Internal Audit Opinion

The Head of Risk and Assurance provided
an annual opinton that OS has adequate
and effective internal control and
governance processes to manage the
achievement of tts objectives Where
weaknesses were identified through the
internal audit work, management agreed
appropniate corrective actions and a
timescale forimprovement

In 2015-16 Internal Audit published

24 assurance reports Four imited
assurance audit reports were 1ssued

and 16 positive assurance opinions
reported Four advisory based reviews
were also undertaken which did not
provide a formal opinion No reviews were
undertaken in 2015-16 that warranted an
unsatisfactory assurance opinion

The follow-up programme confirmed
91% of recommendations had been
implemented by the agreed due date
Extension dates were agreed for all
overdue recommendations There were
no high priority recommendations

not receving adequate management
attention

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer | have responstbility
for conducting an annual review of

the effectiveness of the system of
governance, risk management and
internal control This review 1s informed
by OSARC, the oversight and work of the
Executive Directors and senior managers,
the control self-assessment process
implemented during 2015-16, the annual
assurance statements received from
Heads and Executive Directors, the work
of the Risk and Assurance function and
the external auditors, the Natignal Audit
Office, all of whom have arole in ensuring
the OS nsk management, governance and
internal control structures are adequately
designed and operating effectively The
Governance statement represents the end
product of that review

| have been advised on the implications
of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of governance
and agreed plans to address weaknesses
and to ensure continuous improvement of
the system of internal control
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Management certification

| have considered all of the evidence
provided during the preparation of

this annual Governance statement and
have concluded that the organisation’s
overall governance and internal control
structures are effective

Approved by the Board and signed on its
behalf by

MNige! Chifford
Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016
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Directors’ report

Company number 09121572

The Directors present the Annual Report and Accounts of
Ordnance Survey Limited {the Company) and its subsidiaries
{together the Group) for the year to 31 March 2016

On1Apni 2015 the assets and liabilities of the Ordnance Survey
Trading Fund were transferred to the Company Details of this
transfer are described wathin the Strateaic report on page 9
The principal activity of the Company in the year to 31 March
2016 was the collection, maintenance and distribution of
up-to-date geographic information

Results and dividends
The results are set out in the statement of profit or loss

on page 38 and the Directors declared a dividend of £12 4m
(201415 nil} No dividends were paid durning the year

Directors

The following Directors held office during the year ended
31 March 2016

Jacques Cadranel Non-Executive Director
{appointed 1 May 2015}

Mike Carr Non-Executive Director

Michael Harnson Non-Executive Director
{appointed 11 January 2016)
Employed by BIS

Stephen Lake Non-Executive Director

Craig Lester Non-Executive Director

{restigned 11 January 2016)
Employed by BIS

SirRob Margetts CBE  Non-Executive Chairman

Prers White MBE Non-Executive Director
{resigned 30 June 2015)

Neil Ackroyd Director of Operations

Nigel Clifford Chief Executive Officer
(appointed 1 June 2015}

Andrew Loveless Commergal Director

Clive Mosey Chief Financial Officer
{appointed 16 November 2015}

tan Nunn Chief Financial Officer

(resigned 28 August 2015)
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Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualbfying third party indemmity
provistans for the benefit of its Directors, which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report

Research & Development, and future
developments

These areas are dealt with in the Strategic report

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose It to a number of financial risks
including credit risk, cash flow risk and iquidity nsk

Credit nsk

Credit nsk manifests itsetf in the trade receivables balance,
which is spread over a large and diverse customer base The
group monitors the financial position of customers en imtial
application and on an ongoing basis Provision is made for
debts, which are considered doubtful At the year end, the
Directors do not consider there to be any material unprovided
credit nsk

Cash flow risk

The group monsitors cash flow risk by maintaining cash flow
forecasts and ensuring that adequate unutilised cash facilities
are maintained

Treasury management

Most Group business 1s transacted in sterling although one
large contract was transacted i USS$S The International
subsidiary also receives some payments in foreign currencies
that are converted into sterling at the earliest opportunity
Forward cash flows under the US contract are hedged to the
extent that the Board consider necessary to protect the Group
financial exposure
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Political contributions

No politicat donations were made 1n the year by the Company
or Group

Branches outside the UK

The Group has branches, as defined in section 1046{3} of the
Companies Act 2006, outside the UK as follows

+  Abu Dhabn

- Bahramn

« Singapore

Golng concern

After making enquiries, the Directors of the Company concluded
that it has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future The Company therefore
adopts the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled people are always
fulty considered, bearing in nund the skill set of the person
against the criteria of the role In the event of members of

staff becoming disabled, every effortis made to ensure their
employment with the Group continues and that appropriate
training is arranged 1t1s the policy of the Group and the
Company that the training, career development and promotion
of disabled people should, as far as possible, be identical to that
of other employees

Employee consultation

Ordnance Survey views employees as, by far, 1ts most valuable
asset Assuch, the organisation has developed a broad range
of employee communications channels and mechanisms to
make sure employees are informed, involved and engaged

on everything concerning the current and future business
Employee engagement through communication ranges from
broadcast communications, such as an e-magazine (The Grid),
a daily updated Intranet (Business Today), and an internal social
media channel (Yammer at 0S) through to dialogue-focused
events such as town halls, CEQ briefings, yearly surveys and
regular listening sessions

Independent auditors

So far as the Directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit
wformation, {that s, information needed by the Company’s
auditors in connection with preparing their report), of which
the Company’s auditors are unaware The Directors have taken
all steps to make themselkves aware of any relevant information
and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of

that information The National Audit Office has indicated its
willingness to continue in office and a resolution to confirm
their appointment will be proposed at the Ordnance Survey
Audit & Risk Committee

Authority of issue of financtal statements

The Directors gave authonty for the financial statements to
bessued on 24 June 2016 Nerther the Company’s owner nor
others have the powerto amend the financial statements
after issue

Approved by the Board and signed on 1ts behalf by

S

Nigel Clifford
Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements to meet legal requirements and
regulations

By law, Directors should prepare financial statements for each
financial year

Under that law the Directors have prepared the fimancial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
and the Companies Act 2006} Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs

of Ordnance Survey Limited and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are

required to

+ Selectsuitable accounting policies and apply them
consistently

- Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

+ State whether applicable IFRS standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements

+ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions, and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company These records

help to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s website Legislaticn in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Directors’ remuneration

Policy

The remuneration for the Executive Directors i1s set under the terms of the Shareholder Framework Document signed on 31 March
2015 and 2015-16 has seen the formalisation of the OS Executive Directors Reward Framework

The overall strateqy for the Executive Directors® Reward Structure is to reflect a commercial pay model where a greater degree of an
individual’s total reward package s ‘at sk’ and focused on strategie financial achievements

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s currently chaired by the Non-Executive Director, Mike Carr, and meets at least annually to agree
remuneration policy for Executive Directors and other senior staff The Committee also advises on the direction of the overall
remuneration strategy for all staff The Non-Executive Chairman, Sir Rob Margetts CBE and Non-Executive Directors, Craig Lester
(April-December 2015} and Michael Harrison (January-March 2016} also serve or have served on the Remuneration Committee this
year The Committee is supported and advised by Anne Jessopp from The Royal Mint, the Chief Executive Officer {Nigel Clifford) and
the Human Resources Director {Will Davies)

Those applicable are not present for discussions on matters concerning their own remuneration

Payment for loss of office

In the event of an early termination of a Director’s contract, there 1s a six-month notice pertod and the Director may be eligible for a
redundancy payment

Statement of Directors remuneration

2015-16
' Salaryandfees  Performance  Benefitsinkind' Value of penston Total
related pay benefits?
£°000 £°000 £ £000 £000
Nigel Chfford? (from 1 June 2015} 205-210 25-30 5,700 0 240-245
(FYE 245-250) {FYE 280-285)
Neil Ackroyd 170-~175 25-30 13,000 36 250-255
lan Nunn {left 31 August2015) 60-65 0 400 14 (FYE 34) 75-80
(FYE 150-155) {FYE 185-190Q}
Andrew Loveless 160-165 15-20 1,200 36 210-215
Clive Mosey* (from 16 November 2015} 50-55 5-10 2,300 5 (FYE14) 65-70
{FYE 145-150) (FYE 1(_55—170)

' Taxable benefits are captured through PYID submission Benefits in kind are presented to the nearest £100

2 Neil Ackroyd, lan Nunn and Andrew Loveless are members of a defined benefits pension scheme and Clive Mosey 1s a member of
the Group personal pension scheme

¥ Nigel Clifford is in recerpt of cash allowance in liev of employer pension contribution A deferred performance related pay amount
has been calculated per the Directors’ long term bonus plan for the period 1 June 2015 to 31 March 2016, which 1s payable in April
2018, subject to final approval

4 Clive Mosey was appointed as Chief Financial Officer effective from 16 November 2015

Salary and fees includes gross salary and any other taxable allowances and payments The payment of legitimate expenses 1s not
partof the salary

Total remuneration includes base salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, cash allowances/earnings, benefits in kind and
the value of the pension contributions
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Performance-related pay

Up to 20% of gross salary for each Director i1s available as an additional annual payment based on Company and individual
performance, with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer who 1s not eligtble for this short term incentive plan

The Executive Directors’ performance-related pay assesses performance against OS group business targets and against indwvidual
performance measures as defined in the tables below

et nition] jWeighiing
b irectons)

EBITDA Vs Revenue 17 5% 15 0% 33% 35%

R I o |t I e IR m-
(Frae Caxdio {Income~payments) + 17 5% 15 0% £21 Sm £24 05m

(JV dividends—capex}
[@usiomei %Net rom oter,Score‘%é 17 S%iQ‘f nﬁgﬁ;ogfof'“‘ ¥
2 tiS[aaU O ::&E’%L i {.g ?:* ;?5;“»» Y u AR ST \

e LA fadd

ek g

oLbe

*

Senior Management Head
** Performance between the defined performance levels will attract a relative award between the defined award levels

Definition]

Ea% z“;erﬁgg@“{{n\;lance‘*f?:f: Pt »30%*
WRH&F?EL&“" E V‘M:ﬁ{!&w ) 5»&@1

A -
‘“!dv];‘vﬁ? ”2
¢ v

40% 100% 75% 50% 25% Cancels all
bonus

Value of pension benefits
The total value of pension represents the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 plus the realincrease in any lump sum, less
contributions made by the Director Where this results in a decrease, no value 1s added

Benefits in kind

This s the monetary value of benefits in kind provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable
emalument

Fair pay disclosure

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the salary of the most highly paid Director in thewr organisation
and the median earnings of the crgamisation’s warkforce

The salary and taxable benefits of the most highly paid Director on a full year equivalent basis in the financial year 2015-16 was
£283,355 which was 8 31 times the median salary and taxable benefits of the workforce, which was £34,114

No employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director
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Directors’ defined benefit pensions audited

Real increase in Total acerued Cash Equivalent CETV at 31 March Real increase
pension and related pension at 60 at Transfer Value 2015 in CETV after
lump sum atage60  31March2016and  (CETV) at 31 March adjustment for

related lump sum 2016 inflation and

changesin market
investment factors

£'000 £000 £000 £7000 £°000
Neil Ackroyd 25-5plus0-2 5 45-50 plus 5-10 624 526 46
lump sum lump sum
lan Nunn 0-25 5-10 {(PCSPS)104 101 14
{alpha) 18
Andrew Loveless 255 5-10 {PCSPS) 26 24 29
{alpha) 40

The Directors in the table above are members of the Princtpal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) Details of the scheme are
contained In note 4 to the Accounts and further details can be found at www civilservice pensions gov uk

Neil Ackroyd 1s a member of the classic plus scheme lan Nunn and Andrew Loveless were members of the nuvos pension scheme at
the start of the period and members of alpha at the end of the reporting period

The table above shows the member’s Cash Equivalent Transfer Value {CETV) accrued at the beginning and the end of the reporting
period and the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to
inflation, contributions paid by the employee {including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the pericd

A CETVisthe actuanally assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a partrcular point in
time The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme A CETV
15 a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement
when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in their former scheme The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total service, notjust their
current appointment CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Cccupational Pension $Schemes {Transfer Values) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 and do not take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax
which may be due when pension benefits are taken

The real increase in the value of the CETV is the element of the increase in accrued pension funded by the Exchequer it excludes

increases due to inflation and contributions paid by the Director It1s werked out using common market valuation factors for the
start and end of the period
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Non-executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the

Minister responsible for Ordnance Survey Limited on the
recommendation of the Chairman of the Selection Board, and
any others the Minister may wish to consult Their remuneration
and terms of appointment are agreed at the time of their
appointment, which 1s normally for three years with the option
for this to be extended for a further three years By exception
and on completion of the three year optional period, any further
extension is offered under mutually agreed terms

Payments to Non-Executive Directors {audited)

Ordnance Survey Non-Executive Directors are not
Ordnance Survey employees and are not members of the
Principal Civil Service Pensicn Scheme nor the OS Group
Personal Pension Plan Their remuneration is paid after
deduction of PAYE and NIC through the Ordnance Survey
Limited payroll
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Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors was as follows

Sir Rob Margetts CBE
Pters White MBE

Mike Carr
Stephen Lake

Jacques Cadranel

LT Ny <7
P ﬂﬂS{%O '
SRS

«  Piers White left 30 June 2015

- Jacques Cadranel joined 1 May 2015

« Craig Lester and Michael Harrisen were Non-Executive
Directors during the year, but no remuneration was paid for
their services

Afurther payment of £10,000 per annum 1s made to Ensus
Limited in respect of office services for Sir Rob Margetts CBE

The incluston of a Directors’ remuneration report containing
information about the salary and benefits of the semior
managers and key decision makers of Ordnance Survey Is
voluntanly reported The actual salary, performance related pay
and benefits details of each Director form the audited elements
of this report, as referred to in The Audit Opinion, which can

be found on page 37 of the Annual Accounts The remaining
elements are unaudited

AN

Nigel Clifford
Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016
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Audit report

Independent auditor's report to the Shareholder of Ordnance Survey Linited

| have audited the financial statements of Ordnarnice Survey
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 which comprise

the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
comprehensive income, Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Parent Company
Statement of Financial Posttion, Statement of Changesn
Equity, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in theirr
preparation is applicable law and the International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and as
regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibility
statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view My responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require me and my staff to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to

give reasonable assurance that the financial statements

are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by

fraud or error Thisin¢ludes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group and the parent
company's arcumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition I read all
the financial and non-financial nformation in the Annual Repaort
to identify material inconsistencres with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently
matenally incerrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing

the audit If | become aware of any apparent matenial
misstatements or iInconsistencies | consider the implications for
my report

Opinton on financral statements

In my opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the group’s and the parent company’s affarrs as at
31 March 2016 and of the group’s profit for the year then
ended, and

« the financial statements have been properly preparedin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union, and

+ thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion

+ the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Compames Act 2006, and

+ thenformation given in the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which | report by exception

1 have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Companies Act 2006 requires me to report to you if,

In my opmnion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for my audit have not
been received from branches not visited by my staff, or

+ the financial statements are notin agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

» | have not received all of the information and explanations
I require for my audit

Oclongy hosor
Hilary to enier Statutory Auditor) }1/5//6

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General {Statutory Auditor)
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road

Victona

London

SWIW 9SP
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2016

31March 2016

31 March 2015

£'000 £000
Revenue 146,649 -
Cost of sales (21,099) -
Gross profit 125,550 -
Operating costs {107,571) -
Share of results of joint ventures 4,320 -
Other income 40 -
QOperating profit 22,339 -
Finance income 9 -
Finance cost (10 -
Finance costs - net {1} -
Profit before income tax 22,338 -
Income tax expense {4,850) -
Profit for the period 17,488 -
Profitis attributable to
Owners of the company 18,103 -
Minority interest (615) -

17,488 -

All the activities of the Group are classified as continuing

In the year ended 31 March 2015 the Company was dormant On 1 April 2016, the entire functions, business, subsidiaries, operations
and assets of the Ordnance Survey Trading Fund were transferred to Ordnance Survey Limited, a imited company wholly owned by
the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation and Skills, and the Company commenced trading from this date
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016

Notes 31March 2016 31 March 2015

£'000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 85,242 -
Property plant and equipment 13 31,518 -
Interests in joint ventures 1 2,209 -
Deferred tax asset 14 407 -

119,376 -
Current assets
Inventortes 15 1,885 -
Trade and other receivables 16 21,929 -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 83,055 -

106,860 -

Total assets 226,236 -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (27,107) -
Current tax bability 19 (2,457) -
Provisions 20 (1,067) -
Deferred Revenue 21 (10,839) -

(41,530) -
Net current assets 65,330 -
Non-current assets plus net current assets 184,706 -
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 20 {(448) -
Deferred Revenue 2] {10,147) -
Total iabilities {52,117) -
Net assets 174,119 -
Equity
Share capital 22 34,000 -
Retained earnings 24 141,270 -
Capital and reserves attrnibutable to owners of the Company 175,270 -
Non-controtling Interest (1,151} -
Total equity 174,119 -

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 24 June 2016

They were signed on its behalf by

AL

Nigel Clifford
Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016

The notes on pages 44 to 64 are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Company statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016

Notes 31 March 2016 3iMarch 2015

£000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 85,242 -
Property plant and equipment 13 31,489 -
Investments 10 400 -
Interests in joint ventures n 2,209 -
Deferred tax asset 14 401 -

19,741 -
Current assets
Inventories 15 1,885 -
Trade and cther receivables 16 22,446 -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 82,278 -

106,509 -

Total assets 226,350 -
Current liabilittes
Trade and other payables 18 (27,003) -
Current tax lrability 19 (2,451) -
Provisions 20 {1,067) -
Deferred revenue 21 (10,699) -

(41,220) -
Net current assets 65,389 -
Non-current assets plus net current assets 185,130 -
Non-current Liabilities
Provisions 20 {446) -
Deferred revenue 21 (10,221) -
Total liabilities (51,887) -
Net assets 174,463 -
Equity
Share capital 22 34,000 -
Retained earnings 24 140,463 -
Capital and reserves attnibutable to owners of the Company 174,463 -

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 24 June 2016
They were signed on its behalf by

Nigel Clifford

Chief Executive Officer
24 June 2016

The notes on pages 44 to 64 are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2016

Share capital Retained Share Total Non- Total
earnings premium controlling
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £'000
Asat1Apnl 2015 - - - - - -
Profit for the year - 18,103 - 18,103 (615} 17,488
Total comprehensive income - 18,103 - 18,103 (615) 17,488

forthe period

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners

Issue of ordinary shares ag 34,000 {185} 135,752 169,567 {5326) 169,031
consideration for a business

combination, net of transaction

costs and tax

Capital reduction - 135,752 {135,752) - - -
Dividends payable - {12,400) - (12,400) - {12,400)
As at 31 March 2016 34,000 141,270 - 175,270 {1,151) 174,119

The notes on pages 44 to 64 are an integral part of these Financial Statements

Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2016

Share capital Retained Share Total
earnings premium
£70600 £°000 £°000 £'000

Asat1Apnl 2015 - - - -
Profit for the year - 7m - 17,1
Total comprehensive income for the period - 17,11 - 17,1
Transactions with ownersin their capacity as owners
I1ssue of ordinary shares as consideration for a business 34,000 - 135,752 169,752
combination, net of transaction costs and tax
Capital reduction - 135,752 (135,752) -
Diwvidends payable - {(12,400) - (12,400)
As at 31 March 2016 34,000 140,463 - 174,463

The notes on pages 44 to 64 are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes 31March 2016 31 March 2015

£'000 £000

Profit before iIncome tax 22,338 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 19,202 -
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 3,832 -
Impairment of intangible assets 1,500 -
Share of joint venture results {4,320} -
Interest 1 -
Movements in working capital

Inventories 217) -
Trade and other receivables {4,763) -
Trade and other payables {1,052} -
Provisions for liabilities and charges (1,079) -
Deferred revenue 10,395 -
Cashflow from operations 45,837 -
tncome taxes paid {2,800) -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 43,037 -
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 9 -
Purchase of plant, property and equipment (993) -
Purchase of intangible assets {28,738) -
Cash received on the transfer of trade and assets from Ordnance Survey Trading Fund 64,785 -
Loans to asscciate undertaking {400) -
Receipt of dividends 5,365 -
Net cash used in Iinvesting activities 40,028 -
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (10) -
Net cash used in financing activities {10) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 83,055 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 83,055 -

The notes on pages 44 to 64 are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Company cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
£'000 £'000

Operating profit 21,961 -
Amortisation of Intangible assets 19,164 -
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 3,818 -
Imparment of intangible assets 1,500 -
Share of joint venture results {4,320) -
Interest 1 -
Movements in working capital

Inventones (217) -
Trade and other receivables (3,153) -
Trade and other payables (1,012) -
Provisions for habihities and charges {1,079) -
Deferred revenue 10,275 -
Cashflow from operations 46,938 -
Income taxes paid {2,800) -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 44,138 -
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest recerved 9 -
Purchase of plant property and equipment (984) -
Purchase of intangible assets (28,901 -
Cash received on the transfer of trade and assets from Ordnance Survey Trading Fund 64,061 -
Loans to associate undertaking (400) -
Loans to group companies {1,000 -
Receipt of dividends 5,365 -
Net cash used in tnvesting activities ' 38,150 -
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (10 -
Net cash used in financing activities (10) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 82,278 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 82,278 -

The notes on pages 44 to 64 are an integral part of these Financial Statements

43

ORDNANCE SURVEY LIMITED — ANNUAL REPCRT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-1¢6




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Principal accounting policies

Crdnance Survey Limited (the Company) 1s incorporated in

the United Kingdom under the Companies Act The address

of the registered office 15 given on page 5 The pnincipal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {the Group)

and the nature of the Group’s operations are set gutin note 11
and in the Strategic report on pages 9 tc 14 These financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling, because that s
the currency of the pnimary economic environment in which the
Group operates

The net assets of the Ordnance Survey Trading Fund were
transferred to the Company on 1April 2015 and the Company
commenced trading from this date These accounts are

for the yearended 31 March 2016 The principal activity of

the Company 1s consistent with the Trading Fund before 1t,

the collection, maintenance and distribution of up-to-date
geographic information Asthisis the first year of trading for
Ordnance Survey Limited, this 15 the first year all the following
polictes have been adopted as from incorporation on 8 July 2015
to 31 March 2015 the Company was dormant

11Basis of preparation
(1} Comphance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Internpational Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) and International Financial Reporting Standard
Interpretation Committee (IFRIC} interpretations as adopted by
the European Union and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS asissued by the International
Accounting Standards Board {IASB}

Where IFRS permits a chotce of accounting policy, the
accounting policy which 1s judged to be most appropnate

to the speaific aircumstances of Ordnance Survey Limited
{‘Ordnance Survey’) for the purpose of giving a true and fair
view has been selected The policies adopted are descrnibed
below They have been applied cansistently uniess otherwise
stated in dealing with itemns that are considered matenal to the
financial statements

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under
Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from presenting its own
profit and loss account

{n) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis

(i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic

cost convention except for the following

= Finanaal assets and liabilities (including derivative
mstruments) - measured at fair value

« Assets held for sale - measured at fair vatue less cost of
disposal

() New and amended standards adopted by the Group

As the first set of inancial statements for the Group since
trading commenced all accounting policies are first time
adoptions All accounting policies are compliant with IFRS
effective as of 1 Apnil 2015

The Group has elected to early adopt 1AS 27 amended by Equity
Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to

IAS 27) This amendment allowed the Company to use the
equity method to account for investments in joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements

{v) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 March 2016 reporting
penods and have not been early adopted by the Group

The new revenue standard (IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers) has now been published and 1s mandatory
for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018 The
IASB has issued a new standard for the recegnition of revenue
This will replace JAS 18 which covers contracts for goods

and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts
The new standard 1s based on the principle that revenue 15
recognised when control of a good or service transfers to

a customer - so the notion of control replaces the existing
notion of nsks and rewards The standard permits a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption Under this approach
entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained
earnings on the date of initial application {for example, 1 April
2017), that is, without restating the comparative penod They
will only need to apply the new rules to contracts that are not
completed as of the date of inttial application

Management s currently assessing the impact of the new
rules and has identified the following areas that are likely to be
affected

» Consignment sales where recognition of revenue will depend
on the passing of control rather than the passing of risks and
rewards

+ The balance sheet presentation of rights of return, which will
have to be grossed up in future {separate recognition of the
night to recover the goods from the customer and the refund
obligation)

At this stage, the Group 1s not able to estimate the impact of the
new rules on the Group’s financial statements The Group will
make more detailed assessments of the impact over the next 12
months

The following standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — IFRS 9 addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial habilities and introduces new rules
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for hedge accounting In July 2014, the JASB made further
changes to the classification and measurement rules and also
introduced a new impairment model These latest amendments
now complete the new financial instruments standard This
must be applied for financial years commencing on or after
1January 2018

1 2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiartes Subsidiaries
are all entities over which the Group has control The Group
controls an entity when the Group I1s exposed to, or has rights
te, variable returns from its iInvolvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control s transferred to the Group They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group

All intra-group transactions, balances, Income and expenditure
are eliminated in full on consolidation

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidianes are identified separately from the Group's equity
Total comprehensive income 1s attributed to non-controlling
Interests even f this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance

1.3 Acquisition policy

After the transfer of assets and Llabslities from the

Ordnance Survey Trading Fund to the Company, the ultimate
beneficial owner continues to be the Secretary of State for
Business, Innovatton & Skills on behalf of HM Government
The transaction is therefore exempt from IFRS 3 business
combinations Predecessor accounting has been used to
account for the acquisition of the trade and assets of the
Ordnance Survey Trading Fund and the identified assets and
iabilities recorded at book value

1 4 Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but does not control

The Group accounts for investments in joint ventures using the
equity method of accounting, recording the investment initially
at cost Adjustmentis made in the Group accounts to ensure
consistent application of Group accounting policies

1 55egment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker The chief operating decision-maker, who1s

responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board

The Group reportsits results and Statement of Finanaial
Position as a whole entity as it does not have separately
identifiable reporting segments as defined by IFRS

The Board receives an analysis of revenue by channel and
operating segrments and this s presented in note 2

Costs are not analysed by channel or segment as the Group
does not match its costs to any revenue classification

1 6 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the
dates of the transactions Exchange rate differences are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as incurred Monetary assets
and Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are transtated at the rates ruling at that date

17 Investments

Investments held as non-current assets are stated at cost less
provision for permanent diminution in value

1 8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use 1n the supply

of goods or services, or for administration purposes, are
stated in the statement of financial position at costs less any
accumulated depreciation

The depreciable amount of an asset 1s calcutated by deducting
its residual value from its imtial cost The residual value of an
asset 1s the estimated amount that the Group would obtain
from the disposal of the asset after deducting the estimated
cost of disposal

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the costs of assets less
their residual value over therr estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method

The depreciation policy applied to property, plant and
equipment details the following useful lives to be applied to
tangible fixed assets

Freehold land
Frechold buildings

not depreciated

40 years from acquisition or
remaining useful economic life

IT Equipment 3toSyears
Equipment, facilities and 2to15years
fixtures

Vehicles 4 years

Assetsunder construction  notdepreciated
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The munimum level for capitalisation of property, plant

and equipment s £5,000 with the exception of information
technology {IT} and support systems hardware, which 1s £1,000
AllT workstations (office computers and laptops) bought
together are grouped as one asset

1 9 Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense
in the period in which itis incurred

Internally generated intangible assets are capitalised (f an

asset has been created which can be identified and meets the

following critenia

= Itis probable that the asset will give nise to future
economic benefit

« The original cost can be reliably measured

+ Itistechnically feasible that the asset can be completed
foruse

« Thereisthe intention to complete and use it

+ Thereisthe ability to use 1t

« Resources are avaitable to complete the development

These assets are capitalised at the cost of development

Amortisation 1s charged on a straight ine basis in order to write
down the asset overits useful life Useful ives are reviewed on
an anhual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made
on a prospective basis The useful lives of intangible assets are
expected to fall within the following imits

Data content 5to 10 years

Software 31010 years

Assets under construction not amortised

The Group’s internally generated intangible assets consist of
a) Data content

Data content represents the core geographic data sets from
which the business prowides its products and services

b) Software

The costs of data delivery and business systems include all
directly attnibutable costs including the cost of purchased
computer software licences used to develop the systems

¢) Assets in course of construction

Assets in course of construction are capitalised at cost and
carried at cost less any recogmised impairment loss Cost
includes all directly attributable costs including professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accerdance with the Group’s accounting policy

Amortisation of these assets commences when the assets are
ready for thetr intended use

110 {mpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed annually
to consider whether there have been any events or changes
in circumstance that indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value inuse Forthe purposes
of assessing iImpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating umits) Non-financial assets which have
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date

111 Inventory and waork in progress

Inventeries and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value Cost I1s determined using the weighted
average costing method

Cost comprises design costs, direct matenals, direct labour
and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
nventornes to their present location and condition

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicabte variable
selling expenses

112 Financial assets and liabilities
The Group has classified its financial instruments as follows

a) Financial assets

+ Fixed deposits including funds held with banks and trade
receivables are classified as cash at bank and receivables
respectively

= Investments (other than joint ventures) and short-term
deposits are classified as available for sale

Trade recewvables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, less a provision for
impawrment A provision for impairment of trade receivables

Is established when there s objective evidence that the debt
will not be recoverable according to the onginal terms of the
receivables The amount of the impairment provision will be
based on the difference between the asset’s receivable amount
and the present value of future estimated cash flows Any
impairment 1s recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash in hand
and any amounts on short-term deposit, typically less than six
months

Assets classified as available for sale financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus any transaction costs They are
subsequently measured at fair value Unrealised gans and
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
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b} Fmancial habiitties
+ Trade payables and borrowings are classified as loans and
receivables

Trade payables are recogmsed initrally at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost adjusted for fair
value movements

Loans are initially recognised at fair value an the trade date, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method These are included within current liabilities,
unless expected maturity 1s more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date

113 Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event |tis probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation and that a
reliable estimate can be made of the obligation

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation and are discounted to present value, where matenal

114 Employee benefits
a) Penstons - legacy schemes

Pension benefits are provided through the Principal Civil
Service Pension Scheme {(PCSPS), details are cutlined in
note 4 of the pension schemes of which the Company staff
are members

From 1 0ctober 2002, the Trading Fund staff could have joined
one of three statutory based final salary defined benefit
schemes (Classic, Premium, and Classic Plus) New entrants
after 1 October 2002 chose between membership of the
premium scheme and joining a defined contribution scheme
with a significant employer contribution (partnership pension
account) These schemes were closed to new entrants on

29 July 2007

All new employees who joined the Trading Fund on or after 30
July 2007 could choose between membership of the Nuvos
scheme and a partnership pension account The defined benefit
schemes were closed to employees on 31 March 2015

All employer pension contnibutions payable are charged to the
statement of profit or loss for the financial year as incurred,

on the basis that the schemes are multi-employer and the
Company Is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and hiabilities

b} Pensions = Horizon scheme

From 1 April 2015, all new Company employees were offered the
opportunity to join the Honizon defined contribution pension

scheme Forthis scheme the amount charged to the profit and
loss account in respect of pension costs and other retirement
benefits is the contributions payable in the year Differences
between contributions payable in the year and contnibutians
actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in
the balance sheet

¢} Early release costs

A provision 1s recogrused in the financial year for the full
cost of the pension contributions of employees who have
beenidentified at the discretion of the Company and agree
to take early retirement under restructuring arrangements
before the balance sheet date {excluding actuanially reduced
retirement and medical retirement) until they reach normat
pensicnable age

The full cost of funding early leavers prior to 31 March 2015 has
been provided for in earlier years Funds are released from the
provision annually to fund payments for pensions and related
benefits to the retired employees until normal retirement age
Under the different funding arrangements, which applied
between October 1994 and 31 March 1997, 80% of the costs were
met centraily from the Civil Superannuation Vote (CSV)

The requirement of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets has been adopted to state the early release
and pension commitment prowision at a discounted amount
where the time value of money is matenal The provision for the
estimated payments has been discounted by the HM Treasury
discount rate of 1 37% in real terms The discount 1s unwound
over the anticipated duration of the provision

115 Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration
received ar receivable for the delivery of mapping goods
and services, which comprises mapping data, infarmation,
customer tallored services and copyright revenue, in the
ordinary course of business Revenue i1s shown net of VAT
and discounts

The Group recognises revenue once the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it 1s probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when speaific other critena
are met for each of the activities shown below

0S5 OpenData revenue 1s recognised over the length of the
agreement with the customer, reflecting the obligation of
ongoing supply and to maintain accurate data sets

Public Sector Mapping Agreement {(PSMA) revenue Is
recognised each year at the amount agreed with HM
Government, reflecting customer usage and the Group's
obligation of ongoing supply and to provide updates

Direct Licences - Licences which allow the customer to use the
Group data for internal purposes only The revenue deriving
from these licences 1s recognised over the length of the licence

CRDNANCE SURVEY LIMITED — ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015-16




agreement {usually 12 months) as this reflects the usage of the
data by the customer and the Group's obligation of ongoing
supply and to provide updates

Partner Licences - Licences which enable the customer to add
value to the Group data and resell the product to third parties
Revenue from royalty fees is recognised when the Group
becomes entitled to receive a royalty from an onward sale of the
Group data

Paper maps - Revenue from paper map sales 1s recognised
when the rnisks and rewards of ownership pass to the customer

Services - Revenue from serwices are recognised at the point at
which the services are performed by the Group

Rental - Rental income 1s recognised on a monthly basis and
any revenues received In advance or arrears are deferred or
accrued as appropriate

Unpaid invoices for heence fees which relate to penods after
the balance sheet date are included in the trade recevables
balance The netinvoiced value relating to revenue to be
recognised in the period after the balance sheet date 1s
recorded in current and long-term creditors as deferred income

116 Leases
a) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nisk and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a straight Line basis over the
length of the lease

b) Finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all nisks and rewards of ownership to
the Group Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement
of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased item and
the present value of the minimum lease payments

Each lease payment s allocated between the hability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstan'dmg The correspanding rental chligations,

net of finance charges, are included in payables The interest
element of the finance cost 1s charged to the statement of

profit or loss over the lease period, so as to produce a constant
periodsc rate of interest on the remaining balance of the habibity
for each penod Property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases s depreciated over the shorter of the useful Life of
the asset and the lease term
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117 Taxation
Current taxatton

Theincome tax expense or credit for the period 1s the tax |
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the

applicable income tax rate for each junsdiction adjusted by

changes in deferred tax assets and habilities attributable to

temporary differences and to unused tax losses

The current income tax charge I1s calculated on the basis of

the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end

of the reporting period in the countries where the Group's
subsidianes and associates operate and generate taxable
income Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
requlation is subject to interpretation The Group establishes
provistons where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected
to be pard to the tax authorities

Deferred taxation |

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and habihties and their carrying amounts in the
consclidated financial statements However, deferred income
tax s not accounted for if it arises from imtial recognition

of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit orloss Deferred income tax s
determined using tax rates {(and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting pericd and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset s
realised or the deferred income tax liability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recagmised only if it 1s probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses

118 Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes

have been rounded off to the nearest thousand pounds unless
otherwise stated
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119 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In applying the Group's accounting policies set out above,
management is required to make certain estimates and
judgements concerning the future These estimates and
judgements are reqularly reviewed and updated as necessary
The estimates and judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amount included in these financial statements are
as follows

Development costs - The Group capitalises development

costs when the project meets certain critena Costs are only
capitalised if they can be reliably measured and the project has
been approved by the Investment Group within the Group Prior
to this approval all project costs are expensed

Revenue recognitton — The Group recognises royalty revenue
based on returns from partners These returns are provided on
a timely basis, usually quarterly, thus imiting the timeframe
of the estimate See note 2 for the breakdown of revenue by
channel, segment and geography

Impairment of assets - Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are considered for impairment if there s a
reason to believe that impairment may be necessary Factors
taken into considerationin reaching such a decision include
the economic viability of the asset itself and, where 1t1s a
component of a larger economic unit, the viability of that unit
itself

Future cash flows expected to be generated by the assets

are projected, taking into account market conditions and the
expected useful lives of the assets The present value of these
cash flows, determined using an appropnate discount rate, Is
compared with the current net asset value and, if lower, the
assets are impaired to current value

intangible asset lives - The determination of asset lives for
amortisation purposes s reviewed on a regular basis Assessing
the useful economic life of an asset s based on management
judgement taking into account historical experience and the
impact of technologicat change Consequently this represents a
source of estimation uncertainty See note 12 for the breakdown
of intangible assets classified as software, data & content and
assetsunder construction

2 Revenue

2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000
Trading revenue 145,272 -
Other operating activities 1,372 -
Property rental income 5 -
146,649 -
Trading revenue
2015-16 2014-15
Channel £'000 £000
Direct licences 104,085 -
Partner icences 28,218 -
Paper maps 7,828 -
Services 5141 -
145,272 -
2015-16 2014-15
Segment £'000 £'000
Business to government 87,655 -
Business to business 47,742 -
Business to consumer 9,875 -
145,272 -
2015-16 201415
Geography £'000 £'000
United Kingdom 139,110 -
Other European countries 1,141 -
Rest of world 5,021 -
145,272 -

Revenues are attributed by country, based on the location of
the entity to whom the Group provide the product or service
No details are available of the location of the ultimate end user

Costs are not analysed by channel or segment as the Group
does not match its costs to any specific revenue classification
The Directors routinely receive a breakdown of revenue as
shown above Accordingly the profitability of revenue channet
and segments Is not analysed Forthe same reason, it 1snot
possible to segment the balance sheet

During the year one customer {Department for Business,
Innovatton & Skills) accounted for more than 10% of turnover
The revenue received from this customer 1s secured under
separate long-term agreements

The Group's operating revenue s principally generated by sales
of mapping data, informatien, customer-tailored services and
copynights or copyright material
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31 Operating costs

Note 2016 2015
£°000 £'000
Operating profit for the year
has been arrived at after
charging
Staff costs 4 48,754 -
Amortisation of intangible 12 19,202 -
assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed 12 3,832 -
assets
Research and development 1,097
Operating lease charges - 723 -
buildings
Operating lease charges - PPE 1,484 -
Fees payable to auditor for 95 -
audit of the statutory annual
accounts
Other operating charges 32,384 -
107,571 -

The Company's auditor 1s The National Audit Office No
payments were made to our auditors for the provision of
non-audit services The subsicdhary’s auditor s Delotte The fee
payable to Deloitte for the current year auditis £49k Payments
to Deloitte for non-audit services during the year were £527k

4 Staff numbers and costs

Total staff costs
2016 2015
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries — permanent 41,576 -
employees
Social secunty costs 3,705 -
Pension costs 8,435 -
Addittonal early release costs in year 933 -
Temporary/agency contract labour 11,868 -
costs
66,567 -
Capitalised permanent labour (8,986) -
Capitalised temporary/agency {8,827) -
contract labour
48,754

Special payments

Included in the additional early release costs in year, special
payments of £736k were paid during the year No special
payments greater than £300,000 were made during the year

2016 2015
Total number of special payments 16 -
Total value of special payments 736 -

Total permanent staff numbers, including Drrectors

The average monthly number of full time equivalent persons
during the year was as follows

2016 2015
Operations 915 -
Sales and Marketing 179 -
Corporate Services 10t -

1,195 -

Total temporaryfagency staff

The average monthly number of full-time equivalent
temporary/agencyfcontract persons employed by the Group
during the year was as follows

2016 2015
Operations 16 -
Sales and Marketing 2 -
Corporate Services 15 -

133 -
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Directors’ emoluments

2016 2015
£000 £'000
Salaries and other short-term 762 -
employee benefits
Pension contribution charged in year 87 -
- defined benefit
Penston contnbution charged in year 5 -
— defined contribution
Highest paid Director 242 -

At 31 March 2016 two Directors were members of defined
benefit schemes and one Director was a member of a defined
contribution scheme The Principal Civil Service Pension
Scheme (PCSPS)is a multi-employer scheme The associated
pension contributions have been presented in accordance with
accounting policy 114

Employee benefits

IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ states that a hability exists where
an employee has provided services in exchange for employee
benefits to be patd in the future and an expense should be
recognised when the entity consumes the economic benefit
ansing from service provided by an employee in exchange for
employee benefits

This results in the need to provide for holiday pay that has been
accrued, but has not yet been taken as at the year end

The Group's holiday year runs from April to March and the
payroll records were reviewed to ascertain the amount of
holiday accrued, but not yet taken, as at 31 March 2016

The figure above for wages and salaries includes a charge
of £4,000 in respect of additional annual leave earned, but
not taken, as at 31 March 2016 The total Liability of £857,000
15 included within other payables within note 18 of these
Financial statements

Pension costs - defined benefit

For 2015-16, employer’s contributions of £8,435,000 were
payable to the PCSPS at one of four rates in the range 20 0% to
24 5% of pensionable pay, based on salary bands The scheme
actuary reviews employers’ contributions every four years
following a full scheme valuation The contribution rates are set
to meet the costs of the benefits accruing during 2015-16 to be
paid when the member retires and not the benefits paid during
this period to existing pensioners

PCSPS1s an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme,
but the Group 15 unable to identify its share of the underlying
assets and habilities due to pooling of the assets and hiabilities
being paid out of this pool A full actuanal valuation was carried
out at 31 March 2007 Details can be found in the resource
accounts of the Cabinet Office Civil Superannuation

(www civilservice-pensions gov uk) No information is
available regarding the overall surplus or deficit of the scheme

In 2015-16, there was one retirement on ill-health grounds
amounting to an addrtional accrued pension lability in the
year of ml

The Group employees are members of one of the following
The Classic or Classic Plus schemes, the Premium scheme, the
Partnership Pension Account or Nuvos

Career Average pension arrangements were introduced

on t Apnil 2015 and the majority of Classic, Premium,

Classic Plus and Nuvos members joined the new scheme
Further details of this new scheme are available at

http /fwww civilservicepensionscheme org uk/members/
the-new-pension-scheme-alpha/

The defined benefit schemes were closed to new entrants on 31
March 2015

Pension costs — defined contribution

Allemployees who joined after 1 April 2015 were given the
option to join the Company Personal Pension Plan, Horizon, a
defined contribution scheme

Early release costs provided forin financial year

The statement of profit or loss includes a charge of £944,0001n

respect of new leavers identified in 2015-16 This charge reflects
the costs of leavers identified and confirmed by 31 March 2016

Early release package cost band 2015-16  2014-i5
Less than £10,000 - -
£10,000-£25,000 3 -
£25,000-£50,000 6 -
£50,000-£100,000 6 -
Total number of exit packages 15 -
Total cost £7000 983 -

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid by

the Group th accordance with the provisions of the Civil
Service Compensation Scheme, a statutory scheme under the
Superannuation Act 1972 Early release costs are accounted
for as described in note 114 Where the Group has agreed early
retirements, the additional costs are met by the Group and not
by the Ciwvil Service Pension Scheme All leavers exited under
voluntary terms
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5 Finance income

31March 31 March

2016 2015
£000 £'000
Finance incame
Interest received 9 -

& Finance cost

31March 31 March

2016 2015
£'000 £000
Financing cost
Unwind of provision discount (0 -

7 Taxation

As set out tn the Strategic report, on 1 Apnl 2015,

Ordnance Survey Limited acquired the entire functions,
business, subsidiaries, operations and assets of the

Ordnance Survey Trading Fund The Trading Fund was cutside
the scope of UK Corporatton Tax whereas Ordnance Survey
Lirited 15 a fully taxable entsty The subsidiaries and joint
ventures of Ordnance Survey have throughout been subject to
UK Corporation Tax

{a) Income tax expense 2016 2015
£000 £°000

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 5,257 -

Total current tax expense 5,257 -

Deferred income tax -

Decrease {(increase) in deferred tax (40T) -

assets (note 14}

Total deferred tax credit {407} -

Income tax expense 4,850 -

{b) Reconciliation of Income tax 2016 2015

expense £000 £000

Profit before income tax expense 22,338 -

Tax on profit at the standard rate of 4,468 -

20% (2015 21%)

Reasons affecting charge for the

period

Impact of expenses not deductible 144 -

Current year loss not recognised 238 -

Income tax expense 4,850 -

Astigan Limited generated a loss before tax of £1,188,000 On
this loss no amounts are due in respect of Corporation Tax

The Company has estimated tax losses of £2,894,000 availlable
to carry forward against future profits of the same trade No
deferred taxation asset has been recogmised due to uncertainty
over the timing of taxable profits

Finance Act 2015 included reductions to the UK main rate of
corporation tax from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017
and to 18% with effect from 1 April 2020 Deferred tax has been
valued based on the substantively enacted rates at the balance
sheet date at which it 1s expected to reverse

Adecrease to 17% with effect from 1 April 2020 was announced
inthe UK 2016 Budget Thus further reduction had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and its effect s
therefore notincluded in these financial statements

8 Dividends

Amounts recognised as distnbutions 2015-16 2014-15
to equity holders in the year £'000 £000

Dividend for the year ended 31 March 12,400 -
2016 at £0 36 per share

The full dividend for 2015-161s £12,400,000 which was not paid
during the year

9 Acquisition of functions, business, operations
and assets of the Ordnance Survey Trading
Fund

Acquisition

£000
Cost
Acquired in the year 169,752

The entire functions, business, cperations and assets of

the Ordnance Survey Trading Fund were transferred to
QOrdnance Survey Limited on ¥ April 2015, a lmited company
wholly owned by the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation
& Skills The consideration for the transfer was £169,752,000,
and was imitially left outstanding via an interest free loan from
the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation & Skills to
Ordnance Survey Limited, for £169,752,000 £33,999,999 of this
loan was capitalised via the 1ssue of 33,999,999 shares of £1
each and the remaining balance of the loan of £135,752,001 was
subsequently released for the consideration of two additional
shares of £1 each, which created a share premium account in
equity for £135,751,999 See note 23 for details
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10 Investments and loan

Ordnance Survey Trading Fund Assets and Liabilities 2016 2015
transferred to the Company at 1 April 2015
£'000 £°000

Fixed assets £000 Value of shares at beginning of period - -
Tangible assets 33,717 On the transfer of trade and assets 400 -

from the Grdnance Survey Trading
Intangible assets 77,611 Fund
Investments 4,156 Value of Investments at end of 400 -
Total fixed assets 115,484 penod
Current assets Value of loans at beginning of period - -
Stock 1,668 On the transfer of trade and assets 500 -
Trade debtors 7,866 from the Ordnance Survey Trading

Fund
Prepayment 2,778

payments Additions 1,400 -

Other debtors 6,747

Impairment (1,000) -
Bank 64,061

Value of loans at end of period 200 -
Total current assets 83,120

Value of investments and loan 1,300 -
Current habilities
Trade creditors (674) During the year a 25% shareholding was taken in Denmis Maps

{25shares at £1 ashare) At the point of iInvestment aloan was

Accruals (11.149) provided to Denmis Maps of £400,000
Other creditors {5,519)

Deferred revenue {10,645)

Corporation tax -

Total current habilities (27,987)

Non-current liabilities

Provisions for liabilities & charges {865)
Total non-current habilities {865}
Net assets 169,752
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1 Subsidiaries and investments

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 20156 are as follows

Name of subsidiary Prinaipal activity Country of incorporation Proportion of ordinary

shares held

Ordnance Survey Leisure Limited Consumer web England and Wales 100%
Ordnance Survey Services Limited Dormant England and Wales 100%
Ordnance Survey GB Limited Dormant England and Wales 100%
Astigan Limited Research England and Wales 51%

Ordnance Survey Partners Limited Non-trading holding company England and Wales 100%
Ordnance Survey International LLP International consultancy £ngland and Wales 100%
Ordnance Survey Geolnteligence Limited Dormant England and Wales 100%

Details of the Company’s joint ventures at 31 March 2016 are as follows

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Country of tncorporation  Proportion of ordinary

shares held
GeoPlace LLP National addressing England and Wales 50%
PointX Limited Point of interest database England and Wales 50%
Denmis Maps Limited Map printers England and Wales 25%

Joint ventures Material other investments — GeoPlace LLP

The share of results of joint ventures is as follows The investment in GeoPlace LLP at 31 March 2016 15 as follows

2016 2015 2016 2015

£000 £'000 £'000 £000
GeoPlace LLP 4,275 - Share of gross assets 3,048 -
PointX Lirmited 42 - Share of gross liabilities {970) -
Dennis Maps 3 - Loan - -
4,320 - Net assets 2,078 -

The share of net assets of joint ventures is as follows The operating results for GeoFlace LLP for the financial year

2016 2015 2016 205

£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
GeoPlace LLP 2,078 - Revenue 13,180 -
PomntX Limited 128 - Operating costs (7,480) -
Dennis Maps 3 - Operating profit 5,700 -
2,;09 - Ordnance Survey 75% share 4,275 -

GeoPlace LLP 15 a joint venture limited habbity partnership
setupn 2010-11 to develop and market a national addressing
product GeoPlace LLP commenced trading on 1 April 2011 and
15 not subject to UK Corporation Tax GeoPlace LLP does not
have share capital Ordnance Survey appoints 50% of the Board
Members of the LLP and has a 75% profit share 1n accordance
with a members’ agreement

The registered office of GeoPlace LLP 1s Adanac Drive,
Southampton, Hampshire, SO16 0AS
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12 Intangible assets

Group Software Datacontent  Assetsunder Total
construction

Cost orvaluation £000 £000 £000 £'000

1Apnl 2015 - - - -

On the transfer of trade and assets from the Ordnance Survey 53,146 6,085 17,975 77,206

Trading Fund

Additions 1,553 13,317 7,868 28,738

31 March 2016 60,699 19,402 25,843 105,944

Amortisation

1 April 2015 - - - -

Amortisation 16,517 2,685 - 19,202
Impairment 1,500 - - 1,500
31 March 2016 18,017 2,685 - 20,702
Book value at 31 March 2016 42 682 16,717 25,843 85,242

Book value at1 Apnil 2015 - - - -

Assets under the course of construction include developments to the Multi Resolution Data Programme with net book value of
£9,033,000

On recogmtion of fixed assets transferred from the Trading Fund, the assets were assessed and £606k of assets classified as
intangibles in the acquisition accounts were reclassified to tangibles due to the nature of the underlying asset An additional £34k of
existing fixed assets were reclassified to tangibles during the year due to the nature of the underlying assets

Company Software Data content  Assetsunder Total
construction

£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
1Apnl 2015 - - - -
On the transfer of trade and assets from the Ordnance Survey 52,949 6,081 17,975 77,005
Trading Fund - see note 9
Additions 1,712 13,321 7,868 28,901
31 March 2016 60,661 19,402 25,843 105,906
Amortisation
1Apri 2015 - - - -
Amortisation 16,479 2,685 - 19,164
Impairment 1,500 - - 1,500
31 March 2016 17,978 2,685 - 20,664
Book value at 31 March 2016 42,682 16,717 25,843 85,242

Book value at 1 Apnl 2015 - - - -

Assets under the course of construction include developments to the Multi Resolution Data Programme with net book value of
£9,033,000

On recognition of fixed assets transferred from the Trading Fund, the assets were assessed and £606k of assets classified as
intangibles in the acquisition accounts {see note 9) were reclassified to tangibles due to the nature of the underlying assets
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Group Land Buildings ITEQuipment  Equipment, Total
facilities and
fixtures

Cost or valuation £'000 £'000 £'000 £'060 £'000
1April 2015 - - - - -
On the transfer of trade and assets from the 6,300 22,208 4,135 1,74 34,357
Ordnance Survey Trading Fund

Additions - 3326 648 9 593
31 March 2016 6,300 22,544 4,783 1,723 35,350

Depreciation

1Apnl 2015 - - - - -
Depreciation - 625 2,524 683 3,832
Impairment - - - - -
31 March 2016 - 625 2,524 683 3,832
Book value at 31 March 2016 6,300 21,919 2,259 1,040 31,518

Book value at 1 April 2015 - - - - -

On recognition of fixed assets transferred from the Trading Fund, the assets were assessed and £606k of assets classified as
intangibles in the acquisition accounts were reclassified to tangibles due to the nature of the underlying assets An additional £34k
of existing fixed assets were reclassified to tangibles during the year due to the nature of the underlying assets

Company Land Buildings IT equiprment  Equipment, Total
facilities and
fixtures

. £'000 £000 £°000 £°000 £'000
Cost or valuation
1Apri 2015 - - - - -
On the transfer of trade and assets from the 6,300 22,208 4,134 1,681 34,323
Ordnance Survey Trading Fund - see note 9
Additions - 336 648 - 984
31 March 2016 6,300 22,544 4,782 1,681 35,307

Depreciaticn

1Apnl 2015 - - - - -
Depreciation - 626 2,523 669 3,818
Impairment - - - - -
31 March 2016 - 626 2,523 669 3,818
Book value at 31 March 2016 6,300 21,918 2,259 1,012 31,489

Bookvalue at1 April 2015 - - - — -

On recogmitien of fixed assets transferred from the Trading Fund, the assets were assessed and £606k of assets classified as
intangibles in the acquisition accounts (see note 9) were reclassified to tangibles due to the nature of the underlying assets
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14 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided tn full on temparary differences under
the iability method using a tax rate of 20% (2014 21%)

Group Fixed Total
assets
£000 £°000
1Apnl 2015 - -
{Charged)/credited to the statement 407 407
of profit or loss
31 March 2016 407 407
Company Fixed Total
assets
£'000 £7000
1Aprif 2015 - -
(Charged}/credited to the statement 401 401
of profit or loss
31 March 2016 4M am

Ordnance Survey Leisure Limited

Ordnance Survey Leisure Limited generated a current year loss
befare tax of £156,000 (2014-15 £366,000), which has been
Group relieved to Ordnance Survey Limited Ordnance Survey
Leisure Limited has estimated tax losses of £7,523,000 (201415
£7,523,000) available to carry forward against future profits of
thesame trade No deferred taxation asset has been recogmnised
due to uncertainty over the timing of taxable profits

Astigan Limited

Astigan Limited generated a loss before tax of £1,188,000
(201415 £1,030,000} On this loss no amounts are due n
respect of Corporation Tax The Company has estimated tax
losses of £2,894,000 {2014-15 £1,706,000) available to carry
forward aganst future profits of the same trade No deferred
taxation asset has been recognised due to uncertainty over the
timing of taxable profits

15 Inventories

Company and Group 2016 2015
£'000 £000

Finished goods 2,138 -

Provision for obsolete stock (253) -
1,885 -

During the year, Ordnance Survey wrote off stock carried at
£286,000

16 Trade and other receivables

Group 2018 2015
£'000 £'000
Trade recevables 1,070 -
Allowance for doubtful debts (503) -
10,567 -
Other receivables 606 -
Taxation and social secunty receivable 23 -
Accrued income 6,172 -
Prepayments 4,552 -
21,920 -

A breakdown of intra-government recevables 1s given in
note 25

Bad debts totalling £18,000 were written off in the year

The fair value of trade and other recevables Is not matenally
different to the book value above Receivables less than three
manths past due are not considered for impairment unless
specific circumstances give rise to indication of iImpairment
as historical experience shows these amounts as recoverable
Receivables are reviewed on a reqular basis to assess the
recoverability of the debt and a provision 1s made against
them based on estimated recoverable amounts from the sales
of goods/services determined by reference to past default
expenrience The value of receivables past due s shown in
note 29

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an external
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed on a regular basis
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Company 2016 2015
£°000 £'000
Trade receivables 10,885 -
Allowance for bad debts {465} -
10,420 -
Other recevables 606 -
Accrued income 6,131 -
Prepayments 4,458 -
Loans owed by Group undertakings 500 -
Trade receivables owed by Group EE1 -
undertakings
22,446 -
17 Cash and cash equivalents
Group 2016 2015
£000 £'000
Balance held at Paymaster General's 61,242 -
Office
Balance held tn commercial banks 21,813 -
and cash in hand
83,055 -
Company 2016 2015
£°000 £'000
Balance held at Paymaster General’s 60,885 -
Office
Balance held in commercial banks 21,393 -
and cash in hand
82,278 -

18 Trade and other payables

Group 2016 2015

£'000 £'000
Trade payables 1,309 -
Taxation and social secunity payable 1,505 -
Other payables 1,166 -
Accruals 10,727 -
Dividend payable 12,400 -
27,107 -

Company 2016 2015

£'000 £'000
Trade payables 1,244 -
Taxation and social security payable 1,648 -
Other payables 1,138 -
Accruals 10,354 -
Dividend payable 12,400 -
Intercompany payable 219 -
27,003 -

The fair value of trade and other payables 1s not matenally

different to the book values above A breakdown of

intra-government payables s given in note 25

13 Current tax hability

Group

Corporation Tax

Company

Corporation Tax
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31 March
2016

£'000
2,457

31 March
2016

£'000
2,451
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20 Provisions for habilities and charges 21 Deferred revenue

Group and Company Early Other Total Group 2016 2015
release £000 £000
provision
Current deferred revenue 10,899 -
£'000 £°000 £'000
Non—-current deferred revenue 10,141 -
As at 31 March 2015 - - -
21,040 -
On the transfer of trade 2,51 81 2,592
and assets from the
Crdnance Survey Trading Company 2016 2005
Fund - see note 9 £'000 £'000
Additional provision in 166 - 166 Current deferred revenue 10,639 -
year Intercompany current deferred 60 -
Utilisation of provision {1,222) (34) {1,256) revenue
Finaneing charges - n - n Non-current deferred revenue 10,11 -
unwind of provision Intercompany non-current 80 -
discount
deferred revenue
As at 31 March 2016 1,466 ar 1,513 20,920 -
2016 2015
£°000 £'000
Included in current Liabilities 1,067 -
included in non—current liabilities 446 -
1,513 -

The above amount Is estimated as falling due as follows

Current Non-
habiities  current
liabilities
£°000 £°000
2016-17 1,067 _
2017-18 - 274
2018-19 - 129
201920 - 38
2020-21 - 5
Qther provisions - -
1,067 446

Provisions are discounted at 1 37% in accordance with
HM Treasury guidance

In the other provisions balance i1s a provision for onerous leases
as a result of regional office closures of £47,000 which covers
residual commitments to lease expiry, after application of a
risk-factored atllowance for anticipated sublet rental income,
together with other sundry provisions

5%
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22 Equity share capital

Group and Company 2016 2015
£000 £000
Balance at1Apnl 2015 - -

Issue of shares on the transfer 34,000 -
of trade and assets from the

Ordnance Survey Trading Fund

-seenote 9

Balance at 31 March 2016 34,000 -

23 Share premium

Group and Company 20156 2015
£000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2015 - -
Issue of shares —note 9 135,752 -
Capital reduction {135,752) -

Balance at 31 March 2016 - -

The share premium reserve was recreated as part of the
acquisition of the trade and assets of the Ordnance Survey
Trading Fund, see note 9 for details On 22 March 2016 the
Company undertook a capital reduction In total £135,751,999 of
shareholders’ funds in the share premium reserve was cancelled
and transferred to the profit and loss reserve of the Company
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24 Retained earnings

Group 2016 2015
£000 £°000
Balance at 1 Apnil 2015 - -
Profit for the year 18,103 -
18,103 -
Dividend payable (12,400) -
On the transfer of trade and assets {185) -
from the Ordnance Survey Trading
Fund
Capital reduction - see note 23 135,752 -
Balance at 31 March 2016 141,270 -
Company 2016 2015
£°000 £000
Balance at start of year - -
Profit for the year 17 -
17,M -
Dividend payable {(12,400) -
Capital reduction - see note 23 135,752
Balance at 31 March 2016 140,463 -
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25 Intra-government balances

Group
31 March 2016

Recewvables falling due
within one year

Payables falling due
within one year

Payables falting due after

more than one year

£000 £000 £°000
Batances with
Other central government bodies 755 2 -
Local authorities 28 154 -
NHS trusts - - -
Public corporations and trading funds - - -
783 156 -

Group
31 March 2015

Recewables falling due
within one year

Payables falling due
within one year

Payables falling due after

more than one year

Balances with £000 £°000 £'000

Other central government bodies - - -

Local authonties - - -

NHS trusts - - -

Public corporations and trading funds - - -

26 Operating lease commitments

Group and Company 2016 2015
£'000 £000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases as an expense in the year 2,684 -

At 31 March 2016, the Company has future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below

Graup and Company 2016 2005
£000 £000

Within one year 2,456 -

Between two and five years 3,387 -
5,843 -

27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

No significant contingent assets or labhities noted for current year

28 Capital commitments

No significant capital commitments noted for current year
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29 Financial instruments

The Group’s ftnancial instruments comprise cash deposits
and other items such as trade receivables, receivables owing
from joint ventures, trade payables, provisions and loans The
main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to finance the
Group's operations

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit, iguidity and interest rate risks The Group's policies
for managing these nsks are set to achieve compliance with
the regulatory framework The Group follows Government
Accounting rules, negotiating contracts with suppliers or
contracters in sterling or major international currencies such
as the euro The Group's pelicy during the year on routine
transactional conversions between currencies {for example,
the collection of receivables and the settlement of payables)
remaimned that these should be affected at the relevant spot
exchange rate
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Creditrisk

The Group I1s exposed to credit nsk through its trade receivables
over a number of sectors The Credit Policy hasa deemed level
of nisk acceptance for commercial business and higher credit
risks are subject to credit checking using external sources such
as Dun & Bradstreet®*and Experian®

Generally payment terms are 30 days from date of invoice
exceptin the consumer sector, where payment terms of 60 or
90 days prevaill The profile of past due debt not imparred s
shown below

2016 2015

£'000 £000
Past due D-30 days 10,463 -
Past due 31-60 days 216 -
Past due 61-90 days 43 -
Past 90 days 249 -

In arriving at the provision against trade receivables the

following have been taken into account

»  Anindividual account-by-account assessment of debt based
on past credit history

« Astatistical approach to determine the historical allowance
rate for each debt tranche, applying this to the debt tranche
at the end of the period

« Any prior knowledge of debtor insolvency or other credit
risk

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through equity and retained
profits thus i1s not exposed to interest rate risk

Liquidity nsk

The Group has maintained short-term liquidity throughout the
year by management of its cash deposits
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Foreign exchange nsk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of
changes in foreign currencies

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to foreign exchange on the financial instrument
balances at the reporting date and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period

An increase of 5% of the US dollars versus sterling would result
in a reduction of the Group's profit by £153,000

Fairvalue hierarchy

IFRS 7 requires that an analysis of financial instruments that
are measured subsequent toinibial recognition at fair vaiue,
grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value cbservable 1s given The levels are as follows

Level1 Fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted pnices {unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities

Level2 Fairvalue measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are cbservable for the asset or llability, either directly
{that s, as prices) or indirectly (that 1s, derived from
prices}

Level 3 Fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset
or hability that are not based on observable market
data {(unobservable inputs)

The Group's financal instruments, recognised at fair value, all
fall into the level 3 categonisation
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Interest rate risk profile

The interest rate profile of the Group’s financial assets at
31 March 2016 are set out below There are no financial
habilities All balances are held in sterling

2016 2015
Financial Fixed Floating Total Fixed Floating Total
assets rate rate rate rate
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cash at - 83,055 83,055 - - -
bank
Derivatives

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and
not as speculative investments However, where derivatives
do not meet the hedging criteria, they are classified as ‘held
for trading’ for accounting purposes below The Group has the
following derivative financial instrements

2016
Current habilities £'000
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for {164)
trading
Derivatives

(1) Classification of derivatives

Dervatives are classified as held for trading and accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss unless they are designated as
hedges They are presented as current assets or habilittes if they
are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting penod

{1} Fair value measurement

The only class of derivative held by the Group at year end
were forward foreign exchange contracts These have been
valued using a marked to market methodology as defined by
HM Treasury
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3o0Related parties

Alltransactions with actual or potential related parties are
carned out at an arm’s length basis

The Company is wholly owned by the Secretary of State for
Business, Innovation & Skills, which 1s a ministerial department
of HM Government The Secretary of State for Business,
Innovation & Skills (s regarded as a related party as it has both
an ownership and customer role

In the course of its normal business the Group provides mapping
data and licences to both the private and public sectors

During the year the Group had a significant number of material
transactions with other governmental departments and central
government bodies Most of these transactions have been with
the Department for Business, Innovation & Skills, Land Registry®,
the Scottish Government and GeoPlace LLP

No other Board member, senior management or other
related party has undertaken any matenal transactions with
Ordnance Survey during the year Compensation paid to
management in the ordinary course of Group operations 1s
given in the Remuneration report

Ordnance Survey Letsure Limited 15 100% owned by the
Company The Directors of Ordnance Survey Leisure Limited at
31 March 2016 were Nigel Clifford, Craig Lester and Helen Webb

Ordnance Survey International LLP 1s a joint venture in which
the Company indirectly controls 100% of voting nghts At

31 March 2016, The Company was represented on the Board of
Ordnance Survey International LLP by Andrew Loveless, Neil
Ackroyd and Nigel Clifford

Astigan Limited is 51% owned by Ordnance Survey The
Directors of Astigan Limited at 31 March 2016 representing the
Company were Mike Carr, Neil Ackroyd and Clive Mosey

GeoPlace LLP i1s a joint venture LLP with Local Government
Association At 31 March 2016, The Company was represented on
the Board of GeoPlace by Will Davies and John Kimmance

The Company and PointX Limited are related parties At
31 March 2016, Daniel Dukes and Chive Mosey represented the
Company as Directors of PointX Limited

The Company and Dennis Maps Limited are related parties
At 31 March 2016, Nick Gites, Neit Ackroyd and Clive Mosey
represented the Company as Directors of Denms Maps Limited

The results of Ordnance Survey Leisure Limited,

Ordnance Survey International LLP, Astigan Limited, GeoPlace
LLP, PointX Limited and Denris Maps Limited are inctuded

1n the consolidated financial statements as described in the
accounting policies
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Remuneration of key management staff

Key management staff are considered to be the Company’s
Executive Leadership team

Remuneration of key management staff i1s set out below

2016 2015
£°000 £°000
Salarnes and other short-term 1,106 -
employee benefits
Pension contribution charged in year 154 -
1,260 -

31 Control

The immediate parent undertaking and ultimate controlling
party of the Company 1s the Secretary of State for Business,
Innovation & Skills on behalf of HM Government
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